
 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY 
SAFETY SCRUTINY PANEL 

 

Tuesday, 13th October, 2015, 6.30 pm - Civic Centre, High Road, 
Wood Green, London N22 8LE 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Patrick Berryman, John Bevan, Barbara Blake, Sarah Elliott, 
Bob Hare, Adam Jogee (Chair) and Sheila Peacock 
 
Quorum:  Three 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS   

 
Please note that this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for 
live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone 
attending the meeting using any communication method. Although we ask 
members of the public recording, filming or reporting on the meeting not to 
include the public seating areas, members of the public attending the meeting 
should be aware that we cannot guarantee that they will not be filmed or 
recorded by others attending the meeting. Members of the public participating 
in the meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral 
protests) should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or 
reported on.   

 
By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings. 
 
The chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or 
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or 
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any 
individual or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

3. ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS   
 
The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business 
(late items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New 
items will be dealt with as noted below).    
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 



 

A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS   
 
To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, Section B, 
Paragraph 29 of the Council’s Constitution.  
 

6. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 6) 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting of 29 June 2015. 
 

7. CABINET MEMBERS QUESTIONS; CABINET MEMBER FOR THE 
ENVIRONMENT   
 
An opportunity to question the Cabinet Member for the Environment, 
Councillor Stuart McNamara on developments within his portfolio. 
 

8. REDUCING WASTE  (PAGES 7 - 50) 
 
To consider action by the Council and its partners to change behaviour to 
reduce the amount of waste (including fly tipping) requiring disposal, including 
the balance between enforcement and encouragement.    
 

9. SCRUTINY REVIEW OF WASTE AND RECYCLING PARTS I AND II: 
UPDATE ON PROGRESS  (PAGES 51 - 64) 
 
To consider an update on progress with the implementation of the 
recommendations of the Scrutiny Review of Waste and Recycling Parts I and 
II and current issues.   
 

10. WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE  (PAGES 65 - 78) 
 
To consider the future work programme for the Panel. 
 



 

11. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS   
 
To consider any items admitted at item 3 above. 
 

12. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   
 

 12 November 2015; 
 

 18 January 2016; and 
 

 1 March 2016 
 

 
Rob Mack 
Principal Scrutiny Support Officer 
Level 5, River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, London N22 8HQ  
Tel – 020 8489 2921 
Fax – 020 8881 5218 
Email: rob.mack@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Bernie Ryan 
Assistant Director – Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer 
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ 
 
5 October 2015 

mailto:rob.mack@haringey.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY SAFETY SCRUTINY PANEL 

MONDAY, 29 JUNE 2015 

Councillors B Blake, Elliott, Hare, Jogee (Chair) and Peacock 
 

Also present:  Councillor Wright. 
  
CSP1. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
The Chair referred Members present to agenda Item 1 as shown on the agenda in 
respect of filming at this meeting, and Members noted the information contained 
therein. 

 
CSP2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Berryman.  In addition, an 
apology for absence was also received from Councillor Vanier, the Cabinet Member 
for Communities.   
 

CSP3. ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 

None. 
 

CSP4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

None. 
 

CSP5. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS  
 

None. 
 

CSP6. MINUTES  
 

AGREED: 

 

That  t he m inut es o f  t he m eet ing o f  10 March 2014 be approved.   
 

CSP7. TERMS OF REFERENCE - ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY SAFETY 
SCRUTINY PANEL  
 

AGREED: 

 

That  t he t erm s of  reference for  t he Panel be not ed. 
 

CSP8. CORPORATE PLAN PRIORITY 3 - DELIVERY PLAN  
 
Alison Crowe, Programme Manager for Priority 3 in the Environment and Community 
Safety Service, provided the Panel with a presentation on the actions being 
undertaken to deliver objectives under Corporate Priority 3.   
 
The priority was to create “A clean, well maintained and safe Borough where people 
are proud to live and work.”  This was split down into 5 objectives with 17 projects 
making up the overall programme.   
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 6



MINUTES OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY SAFETY SCRUTINY PANEL 

MONDAY, 29 JUNE 2015 
 

Objective 1 was “To strengthen partnerships and work with our communities so that 
people feel safe in and proud of their neighbourhoods, particularly by reducing anti 
social behavioural crime such as flytipping”.  There were specific targets relating to 
increasing confidence in policing and reducing fear of crime and perception of anti 
social behaviour.  Police attitude surveys would be used to monitor progress.   
 
In respect of actions to take forward objective 2 – “to make our streets, parks and 
estates clean, well maintained and safe” – a range of indicators would be used to 
monitor progress including data relating to littering and flytipping.   
 
Objective 3 was “to move to more sustainable modes of transport by making Haringey 
one of the most cycling and pedestrian friendly boroughs in London”.  The aim was to 
achieve top quartile status by 2018.  Objective 4 was “to prevent and reduce violence 
against women and girls (VAWG)”.  This was an underdeveloped area of policy that 
required the collaboration of a number of different agencies.    
  
Objective 5 was “to work with partners to prevent and reduce more serious crime, in 
particular youth crime and gang activity.”  Targets had been set by the Mayors Officer 
for Policing and Crime (MOPAC) and the Youth Offending Team for improvements. 
 
She provided an overview of key workstreams for the next year.  These included: 
• The new approach to waste and cleansing; 
• A new delivery model for highways and street lighting;  
• The bus accessibility programme; 
• Community in Action – a community engagement trial focussed in Noel Park; and  
• The introduction of joined up enforcement. 
 
In respect of the targets within Objective 2 regarding bus reliability and safer roads, it 
was noted that these were largely the responsibility of external partners and based on 
national targets.  In particular, Transport for London (TfL) was responsible for funding 
a lot of initiatives relating to sustainable transport.   
 
The Panel noted that community engagement on key work streams would be both 
informal and statutory, as appropriate.  In respect of sustainable transport, it was 
noted that baseline data was provided by a perception indicator in respect of cycling.  
In addition, there was also a LIP indicator to increase levels of walking by 3% by 2018.  
The Panel noted that improving traffic flow could mean requiring drivers to drive more 
slowly.  
 
In respect of street cleansing, the Panel noted that although changes had been made 
to “put out” times, they were under constant review.  It was challenging to find a time 
that suited everyone.  An update on progress could be made to the Panel in due 
course. 
 
In response to a question, it was noted that more vehicles would be needed if waste 
collection were to take place outside of rush hours.  However, the Interim 
Neighbourhood Action Team Manager agreed to check to see if the option of 
collections proceeding in the opposite direction to the traffic flow during rush hour 
periods had been investigated.   
 
AGREED: 
 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY SAFETY SCRUTINY PANEL 

MONDAY, 29 JUNE 2015 
 

1. That a list of the 27 bus stops within the Borough that are due to have work 
completed to bring them up to a DDA Standard be circulated to Panel Members; 
and  
 

2. That the Interim Neighbourhood Action Team Manager be requested to confirm 
whether the option of waste collections proceeding in the opposite direction to 
traffic flow during rush hours has been investigated by Veolia.  

 
CSP9. WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE  

 
The Panel considered in detail proposals arising from the discussions that had taken 
place at the Scrutiny Café event.  There had been two proposals for in-depth pieces of 
work;  

• Joined up enforcement ; and 

• Cycling. 
 
In addition, following discussion with the Police Borough Commander for Haringey, it 
had been proposed that the Panel undertake a piece of work aimed at improving 
communication and liaison between licensees and community safety partners. 
 
The Panel noted that, following further discussion with the Chair of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee and the Cabinet Member for Environment, it was now proposed 
that the main Committee undertake work on the issue of joined up enforcement as this 
was felt to be a cross cutting issue. 
 
Panel Members were of the view that the issue of development and green space was 
an issue that deserved priority.  Councillor Wright, the Chair of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, reported that it was likely that the main Committee would be 
undertaking some work on the issue as it was a cross cutting issue that impacted on a 
number of policy areas, particularly regeneration,   
 
It was noted that, although there were only two more Panel meetings that were 
currently scheduled, more would be added dependent on what was in the final work 
plan.  An additional meeting was likely to be scheduled in the autumn to consider the 
crime statistics for the borough and look at associated crime and community safety 
issues.  Proposals in the work plan would be developed further including how they 
would be approached, witnesses and sources of evidence.  Agenda items for 
meetings would be based on the outcome of this process.   
 
Panel Members were of the view that the issues of both reducing waste and cycling 
warranted in-depth pieces of work.  Waste was a major concern amongst residents.  
However, it was noted that there had already been several pieces of in-depth scrutiny 
work on the issue of waste.  The Assistant Director of Environment and Community 
Safety commented that the specific issue that needed addressing was how people’s 
behaviour could be changed.  As part of this, work could be undertaken on what other 
local authorities were doing to address the issue, especially in respect of 
communications.  The cost of dealing with waste was high and even increasing so 
even a small improvement could be significant.   
 
In respect of cycling, it was noted that there had not been any previous in-depth 
scrutiny work on this issue.  Current policies could be looked at to see where 
improvements could be made.   The Assistant Director reported that it was the aim to 

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY SAFETY SCRUTINY PANEL 

MONDAY, 29 JUNE 2015 
 

make Haringey the most cycling friendly borough in London and there was a lot of 
scope for development.  Work could be undertaken to see what the boroughs that 
comparatively high levels of participation in cycling, such as Hackney, had done to 
encourage it.  A challenging target of increasing levels in Haringey from 2% to 5% had 
been set and any help that could be provided in achieving this would be most 
welcome. 
 
The Panel noted that it was likely to be possible to undertake work on both of these 
issues.  Cycling was envisaged as an in-depth piece of work whilst waste reduction 
would be a “one-off” item.  Further work would be undertaken in developing these 
pieces of work in due course.   
 
In respect of the proposal for work regarding reducing waste, it was suggested that, in 
the first instance, previous scrutiny work on the issue be revisited to identify any 
outstanding issues.  It was felt that the proposed item on parks could also report on 
the outcome of events and that this might be best scheduled during the autumn.   
 
Councillor Wright, the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee reported that 
there had been discussion with the Police Borough Commander regarding the 
community safety element of Panel’s workplan and specifically the issue of violent 
crime.  It had been noted that a significant proportion of this was linked to drinking.  It 
was felt that better links between community safety partners and licensees might 
assist and proposed that meetings between the Panel, the Police and groups of 
licensees across the borough be arranged to address this issue. Recommendations to 
the Community Safety Partnership could be made in response to particular issues that 
came to light.  The Assistant Director for Environment and Community Safety 
commented that residents were increasingly asking for licensing reviews and evidence 
was required for this to take place.  Improved liaison with licensees would serve a 
useful purpose within this. 
 
AGREED: 
 
1. That, subject to the additions, comments and amendments referred to above, the 

items outlined in section 8 of the report be prioritised for inclusion in the 2015/16 
work programme for the and recommended for endorsement by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on 27 July 2015; and 

 
2. That, as appropriate, the Chair of the Panel meet with appropriate Cabinet 

members and senior officers to clarify further the work programme.     
 
 

CSP10. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 

CSP11. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 

• 17 September 2015; and 
 

• 1 March 2016. 
 
 

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY SAFETY SCRUTINY PANEL 

MONDAY, 29 JUNE 2015 
 

Cllr Adam Jogee 
Chair 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 

Page 1 of 4  

Report for:  Environment and Community Safety Scrutiny Panel 
 
Item number:  
 
Title: Reducing Waste 
 
Report  
authorised by :  Stephen McDonnell, Assistant Director Environmental Services & 

Community Safety 
 
Lead Officer: Tom Hemming, Waste Strategy Manager 

Tel: 020 8489 5625, Email: tom.hemming@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Ward(s) affected: All 
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: N/A 
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 
 
1.1 The panel has requested a report to consider actions to change behaviour to 

reduce the amount of waste (including fly tipping) requiring disposal, including 
the balance between enforcement and encouragement.   
 

1.2 This report outlines several inter-related areas of activity that contribute to 
waste reduction and how these are currently delivered. 
 

1.3 Reducing waste has a number of positive outcomes in addition to the obvious 
environmental and carbon benefits that come with less waste being generated, 
transported and processed in one form or another, and consequent 
conservation of natural resources; it saves residents and businesses money, 
reduces the costs of collection and disposal, which are significant, and 
engenders greater civic responsibility through behaviour change and 
awareness.  

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
 
2.1 We must raise the profile of the cost of waste to the taxpayer.  This is an 

ongoing job, the importance of which only increases in the current climate of 
massively reduced budgets that will go down further.  

  
2.2 In the case of flytipping, more joined up working between engagement and 

enforcement is required to increase awareness of the risks of being caught and 
the willingness on the part of the council to impose sanctions on those who 
cause a blight on their own and others’ neighbourhoods.  To this end, the 
enforcement regime has to engage and secure a contribution from across the 
community, including the social and private rented housing sectors. 

 
 
  
3. Recommendations  

Page 7 Agenda Item 8



 

Page 2 of 4  

 
3.1 The report is for noting. 

 
4. Reasons for decision  

N/A 
 
5. Alternative options considered 

N/A 
 
6. Background information 
 
6.1 Waste reduction activity in the context of this scrutiny can be divided into 

several inter-related areas of activity: 
 

1) Reducing the amount of waste generated in the first place  
Referred to as ‘waste prevention’ and defined as the measures taken before a 
material or product becomes waste, that reduces the absolute volume of the 
waste stream.  It is wide ranging in nature, taking in consumer 
behaviour/shopping habits, retailer packaging, extension of the product life span 
and associated policy/regulation.   
 
Local authorities have limited control over the factors that drive waste 
generation – eg. economic conditions that drive consumption, packaging 
regulations and associated industry practices.  We do however have a role in 
educating and engaging residents and business to challenge the ‘throw-away’ 
culture and bring about longer term behaviour change. 
 
At a local authority level, activity includes encouraging greater levels of reuse 
such as donations to charity shops,  home composting and reducing the 
amount of waste that is generated in the first place, such as through awareness 
campaigns about food waste reduction.  The key outcome is that less material 
ends up as waste that has to be dealt with by the local authority, with the 
associated avoided costs of disposal.   
 
This activity is currently delivered on a north London wide basis.  The North 
London Waste Authority (NLWA), in partnership with the constituent boroughs, 
coordinates and delivers 2-year waste prevention plans.  These are short term 
plans which implement the waste prevention objectives included in the North 
London Joint Waste Strategy, a document which provides the strategic vision 
for how the seven north London boroughs (Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Hackney, 
Haringey and Islington) and NLWA will work together to manage waste in north 
London between 2004 – 2020.   
 
Details of what the North London Waste Prevention Programme delivered in the 
first year of the current plan, 2014-15, are contained in Appendix 1 and can be 
found by visting http://www.nlwa.gov.uk/about/authority-strategies 
 
2) ‘Squeezing’ residual waste capacity – of the waste that is generated, 
this refers to policies and procedures to limit the amount that is disposed of as 
residual waste, generally by maximising the proportion that is recycled and 
deferring the point at which items have to be managed as waste, through reuse.  

Page 8

http://www.nlwa.gov.uk/about/authority-strategies


 

Page 3 of 4  

Whilst the outcome is less about reducing the absolute quantity of waste, such 
policies can be drivers for wider behaviour change over time. 
 
A policy of weekly collections of recycling, food and green waste, with 
everything that cannot be recycled collected every two weeks (as implemented 
by the Council in 2012/13) is generally recognised as the single biggest policy 
lever available to local authorities in this regard.  Other options include smaller 
residual waste bins/limits on permitted waste capacity, bans on ‘side waste’, or 
‘compulsory’ recycling policies (which have been made extremely difficult to 
enforce with the advent of the Deregulation Bill this year).  Consideration of 
these areas forms part of the Recycling Action Plan workstream with Veolia, 
given the close links with recycling rate performance. 
 
3) Making sure the ‘polluter pays’ – this is about ensuring that where 
waste is generated it is managed and paid for by the appropriate party, in line 
with the ‘polluter pays’ principle.   
 
The current level of flytipping in Haringey results in the local authority bearing 
the cost of collection and disposal for waste that should properly be managed 
and paid for elsewhere eg. traders without waste contracts, HMOs/rented 
properties dumping waste on the streets where landlords should be making 
arrangements for disposal.  If implemented effectively, this in turn has the 
potential to drive an overall reduction in waste in the interests of 
businesses/individual seeking to save money. 
 
The strategies required to effectively counter this issue involve a combination of 
policies and procedures which are much wider than waste – for example, 
licensing and planning - as well as a coherent set of waste policies (such as on 
permitted waste capacity), effective engagement and education, backed up by a 
robust enforcement policy.  These are the subject of a review of flytipping 
strategy currently being undertaken. 
 
An element of the response to flytipping, however, will result in the diversion of 
waste from being dumped to legitimate collection routes which will not in itself 
reduce the total amount of waste, eg, correct usage of waste and recycling bins, 
availability/ease of use and take-up of bulky waste services and Reuse & 
Recycling Centres (Civic Amenity sites).   
 

6.2 A comprehensive strategy for reducing waste therefore requires a coordinated 
approach that addresses the causes of the various facets of waste generation 
and recognises the inter-dependencies between consumption (as influenced by 
population, housing and economic growth) and waste generation, the take-up of 
recycling/other legitimate waste services (eg. for bulky waste) and flytipping.  A 
multi-agency response is required to tackle much of this - housing, planning, 
regeneration, communications and enforcement are as much a part of solutions 
as waste services.  A forthcoming  review of the council’s overall waste stategy 
is planned and it is essential that this is framed in the terms set out in this 
paragraph. 
 

7. Contribution to strategic outcomes 
 

Page 9



 

Page 4 of 4  

7.1 The benefits of delivering an effective strategy are manifold – reduced collection 
and disposal costs, greater reuse and recycling performance, reduced carbon 
impact, improved cleanliness of streets and estates, improved satisfaction and 
perception, and greater civic responsibility.   

 
7.2 In this way waste reduction contributes to Priority 3 of the Corporate Plan 

(improved environment and clean streets) and is consistent with the Plan’s key 
themes, prioritising as it does prevention/early intervention, value for money 
and working with our communities. 
 

8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including 
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities) 
 

8.1  Finance: The actions taken as part of the North London Waste Prevention Plan 
are contained within the NLWA levy cost to boroughs.  Other actions outlined in 
this report are met from existing approved budgets. 

 
8.2 Legal: The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance notes the contents of 

the report and advises that there are no specific legal issues. 
 
8.3 Equalities: Comprehensive waste, recycling and bulky waste collection services 

are available across Haringey, with all residents having the opportunity to use 
wheeled bins, single-use sacks or communal banks.  
 

9. Use of Appendices 
 
Appendix 1: Summary of North London Waste Prevention Programme 2014-15 

 
10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  

 
North London Waste Prevention Plan 2014-16 
http://www.nlwa.gov.uk/about/authority-strategies 

 
 
 

Page 10

http://www.nlwa.gov.uk/about/authority-strategies


1 
 

 

Waste Prevention Summary Report 2014 – 2015 

 

 

Introduction 

 

In the financial year 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015, North London Waste Authority (NLWA) 

worked in partnership with the seven constituent boroughs to reduce waste arisings in north 

London. Three waste streams were prioritised for action, namely food waste, furniture and 

textiles, complemented by other activities promoting Waste Electrical and Electronic 

Equipment (WEEE) reuse and recycling, reduction of unwanted mail, promotion of reusable 

nappies and waste prevention education. This summary report presents the results of the 

year‟s activity and reports progress in implementing north London‟s Waste Prevention Plan 

2014-16. 

 

 

Food waste 

 

Outreach food waste events 

 

 
 

Over the course of 2014/15, NLWA‟s Waste Prevention team delivered a programme of 

face-to-face outreach activity to encourage food waste reduction across north London and 

put up information stands in a range of settings, such as festivals and fairs, in libraries, 

community centres, offices, universities and leisure centres. Officers promoted five key food 

waste reduction behaviours - plan meals to avoid buying food that will then go to waste; write 

Page 11



2 
 

a shopping list; understand the meaning of „best before‟ and „use by‟ dates; measure 

portions and store food well to avoid waste. Free tools were provided to help with food 

storage and correct measurement of portions, as well as a leaflet describing the five food 

waste reduction behaviours. 

 

A total of 128 outreach events were delivered, directly engaging a total of 10,333 residents 

in line with the target set at the start of the programme. The table below shows a breakdown 

by borough: 

 

Borough Total 
Number of 

Conversations Attendance 

Barnet 20 1,787 7,270 

Camden 31 1,675 8,859 

Enfield 11 1,230 5,254 

Hackney 14 1,155 4,720 

Haringey 15 1,799 3,382 

Islington 28 1,906 7,683 

Waltham 
Forest 9 781 3,100 

Total 128 10,333 40,268 

 

The events were promoted on NLWA‟s Wise Up to Waste website and associated Twitter 

account and also listed on the Waste and Resources Action Programme‟s (WRAP‟s) Love 

Food Hate Waste website. 

 

Event feedback 

 

Feedback from stall attendees was gained using an emailed survey conducted with a 

sample of self selecting attendees six months after events were held. The survey was used 

to determine whether behaviours were sustained over the long term and provide more in-

depth data on the impact of the information officers provided. Twenty three residents 

returned the feedback form and the results revealed that:  

 83% ( 19 residents) felt they had an improved knowledge about food waste as a 
result of visiting the stall and receiving the information provided; 

 83% ( 19 residents)  said they had thrown away less food since visiting the stall than 
they used to; 

 91% (21 residents)  said they were now saving money on food purchasing as a 
result; 

 83% (19 residents) said that they had passed on or were planning to pass on the 
advice they received to friends and family. 

 

Rice scoops and spaghetti measurers were deemed the most useful tools offered to 

residents and more than half of respondents said that they were continuing to use them. 

 

Unprompted resident comments were positive and included the following: 

  “I use the rice scoop everyday for my porridge as I find one scoop perfect.” 

Page 12

http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/
http://england.lovefoodhatewaste.com/
http://england.lovefoodhatewaste.com/


3 
 

  “Keep going and talk to others”  

  “I received tools and advice which has saved me lots of money and avoided food 

wastage.”  

 

The above results demonstrate that the events are providing useful advice and support to 

residents assisting them in starting and continuing to successfully reduce food waste. The 

majority of comments were encouraging and positive and there were no negative comments 

about the events or about the quality of the information received. 

 

Work with the community 

 

Waste prevention workshops were delivered to 38 local community groups, engaging 569 

people. The sessions consisted of a presentation and interaction through question and 

answers and discussion and were attended by diverse audiences. The NLWA team feel 

confident that those who took part in the sessions will be able to reduce their food waste at 

home. 

 

Community groups that the team work with include the following: 

 

 Age UK groups across the seven boroughs 

 Barnet Stroke Group 

 Bell Lane Primary School (Parents‟ groups) 

 Camden Carers Service 

 Edgware & Mill Hill Friendship Centre 

 Fairway Children‟s Centre 

 Islington Arts and Media school 

 Live Simply Group 

 Montem Primary School (Parents‟ groups) 

 More Life 

 North London Cares 

 PACT Meal – Manor House Development Trust 

 Peel Institute 

 Redmond Community Centre 

 Ruth Winston Community Centre 

 St Luke‟s family cookery school 

 St Luke‟s over 55's group 

 UCL Medical Department (Royal Free Hospital) 

 

79 attendees returned questionnaires and their feedback was positive. The survey found that 

79% (62 attendees) felt that they would be able to reduce their food waste as a result of the 

presentation. The vast majority found the talk interesting and claimed that it helped them 

learn new skills, 95% (72 attendees) and 78% (60 attendees) respectively. 

 

The analysis of the feedback forms has been graphically represented below: 

 

Page 13



4 
 

 
 

Work with Universities and Colleges 

 

During 2014/15, Waste Prevention Officers worked with 15 north London universities and 

directly engaged 796 people. Officers delivered workshops and held information stalls, nine 

of which were at specially organised events such as sustainability or Fresher fairs.  

 

A specially-tailored presentation was also delivered to the Medical department at University 

College London, emphasising the link between food waste reduction and health. For 

instance, there was particular focus on information about freezing and „best before‟ and „use 

by‟ dates because lots of nutritious foods get thrown away because people misunderstand 

the rules. In addition, one slide discussed how food waste habits vary among age groups; 

those aged over 65 years old tend to waste the least.  

 

Feedback found that 75% of students felt they would be able to reduce the amount of food 

they throw away as a result of attending the presentation. 

 

Green Office Week 

 

As part of national Green Office week which took place between 12 and 16 May, food waste 

events were delivered in Barnet, Camden, Hackney, Islington and Waltham Forest with 

events in the other three boroughs scheduled for later that summer. The events were 

delivered in Council buildings to engage with Council staff and promote the „waste free 

lunch‟ message. In total Waste Prevention Officers engaged with 510 members of staff, 98% 

stating that the tools and advice they received will help them to reduce their food waste. 

Correct portion sizes were the most popular topic of discussion. 

 

 

 

0.00

10.00

20.00

30.00

40.00

50.00

60.00

70.00

80.00

90.00

100.00

I found the 
talk 

interesting

The content 
of the talk 

was relevant 
to me

I learned 
things I didn't 
already know

I liked the 
way the 

information 
was 

presented

Reducing the 
amount of 

food I throw 
away was 

important to 
me before 

today

I feel I will be 
able to 

reduce the 
amount of 

food I throw 
away as a 

result of the 
talk

Disagree

Neutral

Agree

Page 14



5 
 

Waste Prevention Displays 

 

To further engage with the local community and promote the food waste reduction message, 

the Waste Prevention team set up waste prevention displays in libraries, food banks, 

community centres and empty shop windows. Over the course of 2014/15, 951 leaflets and 

portioning tools were taken by visitors. The table below shows the full list of display 

locations: 

 

Display Location Borough 

Eastern European Centre Barnet 

Abbey Community Centre Camden 

Holborn library Camden 

Highgate Library Camden 

Kilburn Library Camden 

Camden Town Library Camden 

Queen's Crescent Library Camden 

Kentish Town Library Camden 

North Enfield Food Bank,  Enfield 

Edmonton Food Bank Enfield  

St Luke‟s Community Centre Islington 

Islington Central Library Islington 

Islington Food Bank Islington 

Hale End Library Waltham Forest 

Higham Hill Library Waltham Forest 

Lea Bridge Library Waltham Forest 

Leytonstone Library Waltham Forest 

North Chingford Library Waltham Forest 

Walthamstow Library Waltham Forest 

Wood Street Library Waltham Forest 

 

There were no opportunities for displays in Haringey or Hackney but it is hoped that 

additional opportunities will arise in these boroughs in the future. Waste Prevention Officers 

monitor displays space through monthly contact. 

 

Food Waste Challenge 

 

This year‟s food waste challenge ran from April 2014 until the end of February 2015. A total 

of 137 people signed up and participants recorded the amount of food they wasted and the 

amount of money they spent on food for two weeks. The first week involves participants 

measuring their food waste during a „typical‟ week whilst the second week requires them to 

repeat the measurement process, having received a pack of advice, tips and tools to help 

them reduce their food waste. 

Six residents returned results. Overall, results showed that 67% of those that completed the 

challenge reduced the amount of money they spent on food purchases during the second 

week of the challenge by 39The average financial saving to participants was £42/week and 

the average food waste reduction was 610g/week. 

Page 15



6 
 

It is hoped that the money saving and food waste reduction habits developed during the 

second week of the Challenge would be a powerful motivation for the participants to 

continue their food reducing habits in the future.  

 

A participant provided the following quote: “Et voila, really the results are so amazing!  I 

waste so little food using the tools that you sent.”  

 Priscillia Valente de Oliveira, Barnet resident. 

 

 

Waste Less, Lunch Free events 

 

During the summer of 2014, „Waste Less, Lunch Free‟ events were held in each of the seven 

north London boroughs.  

 

The core message behind the events was that it is possible to distribute 1,000 portions of 

free food to members of the public on a budget of £680, which is the amount of money that 

the average UK family wastes on uneaten food each year. 

 

A free lunch was offered to members of the public, along with food waste reduction advice 

and free tools, such as rice scoops. The ingredients for the lunches were sourced from local 

supplier donations of food that was coming to the end of its useful life and therefore 

otherwise would have been wasted.  

 

The dishes served were panzanella salad, vegetable biryani and vegetable fritters, all 

recipes taken from the North London Food Lovers‟ Cookbook. Offering a free lunch to 

members of the public enabled staff to engage with residents and provide detailed food 

waste reduction advice in a relaxed and friendly environment. 

 

Page 16

http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/docs/videolib/north-london-food-lovers'-cookbook.pdf?sfvrsn=0


7 
 

 
 

The number of portions served and conversations with residents about food waste reduction 

were recorded for each event: 

 

Borough Date Venue Number of 

portions 

served 

Number of 

conversations 

Barnet 5 July Barnet Church 

Yard 

400 247 

Camden 31 

July 

Swiss Cottage 

Open Space 

900 300 

Enfield 24 

July 

Palace Gardens 

Shopping Centre 

1,100 377 

Hackney 28 

June 

London Fields 900 400 

Haringey 16 

August 

Tottenham Green 475 192 

Islington 26 

July 

Islington Green 500 317 

Waltham 

Forest 

12 July Walthamstow 

Town Square 

Gardens 

755 230 

Total 5,030 2,063 

 

 

Page 17



8 
 

In total, 5,030 portions of food were served and 2,063 people were directly engaged by the 

attending staff. The vast majority of people are happy to engage with staff about reducing 

their food waste, a problem most people recognised they need to address. Feedback was 

gained from attendees at each event and found: 

 

 88.7% said they had learned new information about how to reduce food waste; 

 85.7% felt they would be able to reduce their food waste a result of their attendance; 

 87% said they would implement the tips and advice relating to smart storage; 

 82.5% said they would implement the tips relating to food shopping; 

 87.2% said they would implement the tips relating to cooking with leftovers. 

 

Although events relied largely on passing footfall, they were promoted on the Wise Up To 

Waste website and via social media. BBC Radio London also approached NLWA for an 

interview and NLWA‟s Waste Prevention Officer had a twenty minute conversation with 

hosts of the BBC London radio Sunday morning‟s Breakfast Show on 16 August. 

 

 

Interactive Website Game 

 

In 2014, a digital media company was appointed to develop an interactive food waste game, 

to be uploaded onto the Wise Up To Waste website. The game took the form of a quiz and is 

intended to be a fun but informative way to learn about the five habits that people can do to 

reduce the amount of food they throw away: plan meals; write a shopping list; use perfect 

portions; know your („best before‟ and „use by‟) dates and store food correctly so that it 

keeps fresher for longer. The game was promoted on NLWA‟s Wise Up To Waste website 

home page, via social media, and can be accessed via the icon below: 

 

 
 

The game quickly became one of the top viewed pages on the Wise Up To Waste website 

with 104 unique views in February and then 209 in March (third most viewed page). The 

game was also shared by Association of Cities and Regions for Recycling and sustainable 

Resource Management (ACR+) on the European Week for Waste Reduction webpage 

http://www.ewwr.eu/en/support/thematic-days-2014-stop-food-waste. ACR+ also promoted 

the game via posts on their Facebook page. 

 

 

Page 18

http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/
http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/
http://www.ewwr.eu/en/support/thematic-days-2014-stop-food-waste
http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/waste-less/food-waste/food-waste-game


9 
 

Advertising 

 

Newspaper Advertising 

 

During July and August, customised food waste advertisements were placed in borough 

publications across the north London area. The advertisements promoted smart storage of 

food as a way to keep it fresher for longer, reducing food waste. The adverts appeared in the 

following publications: 

 

 Barnet and Potters Bar Press, Hendon and Finchley Press, Edgware and Mill Hill 

Press; 

 Camden New Journal; 

 Our Enfield; 

 Hackney Today; 

 Haringey People; 

 Islington Gazette; and 

 Waltham Forest News. 

 

An example of the advertisement is shown below: 

Page 19



10 
 

 
 

Bus Advertising 

 

In January 2015, a series of food waste advertisements were displayed on 132 buses, on 

rear and internal advertisement panels. They promoted the main food waste reduction 

behaviours, along with the money-saving message and Wise Up To Waste and borough 

logos. An example is shown below: 

 

Page 20



11 
 

 
 

Opportunities to see (OTS) figures were received from the advertising company which refer 

to all views possible over the three week advertising period, including repeated views. Total 

views came to 18,603,247. 

 

 

European Week for Waste Reduction 

 

For the fifth year running, NLWA participated in the European Week for Waste Reduction, a 

LIFE+ funded initiative aiming to promote the implementation of awareness-raising actions 

about sustainable resource and waste management during a single week. This year, the 

week ran from Saturday 22 to Sunday 30 November 2014.  

 

NLWA registered a total of 37 activities with the organisers. Overall, 1,032 residents and 

5,636 pupils were directly engaged in waste prevention engagement activity during the 

European Week for Waste Reduction. NLWA delivered the following activity: 

 

Waste prevention-themed art installations 

 

   
 

Page 21



12 
 

Art installations, focusing on food waste, were installed in public areas in each of the north 

London boroughs. The pieces displayed artwork created by pupils from local primary 

schools, representing each of the most common types of food that get wasted.  

 

The art was installed at the following locations: 

 

Borough Location 

Barnet Barnet Copthall Leisure Centre, Champions Way, Hendon, NW4 1PX 

Camden Swiss Cottage Library, Adelaide Rd, Camden, London NW3 3NF 

Enfield Barrowell Green Recycling Centre, London N21 3AU 

Hackney Shoreditch Park, Hackney, N1 7EJ 

Haringey 
Outside Wood Green Central Library, 187-197A High Rd, Wood Green, 

London N22 6XD 

Islington Islington Green, Upper Street, N1 

Waltham Forest 
Waltham Forest Town Hall (reception), Forest Rd, Walthamstow, Greater 

London E17 4JF 

 

A film was produced to further promote and celebrate the outcomes of this project and can 

be viewed on http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/schools/events-and-activities as well as on 

YouTube at https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=GMtaeYE7b1c . 

 

Office food waste stalls 

 

Lunchtime food waste reduction stalls were held in council offices in each of the seven north 

London boroughs in line with the following schedule: 

 

Borough Council Offices Date 

Barnet 

North London Business Park, Oakleigh Road, 

London N11 1NP 27/11/2014 

Camden 5 Pancras Square, London N1C 4AG 26/11/2014 

Enfield Civic Centre Silver Street Enfield EN1 3XA 25/11/2014 

Hackney 

Hackney Service Centre, 1 Hillman Street, 

London E8 1DY 21/11/2014 

Haringey 10 Station Road, London N22 7TR 20/10/2014 

Islington Town Hall, Upper St, London, N1 2UD 24/11/2014 

Waltham Forest 

Waltham Forest Town Hall, Forest Road, 

London E17 4JF 01/12/2014 

Page 22

http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/schools/events-and-activities
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=GMtaeYE7b1c


13 
 

 

 

 

Waste Prevention Officers spoke with a total of 845 members of staff, offering them free 

tools and tips to help them reduce their food waste and therefore save money. 

 

‘Great Taste, Less Waste’ shows 

 

Schools performances were 

delivered in 11 north London primary 

schools. Pupils learnt about the 

environmental and financial 

problems posed by food waste, as 

well as how they can practically 

reduce waste at school and home. 

 

 

 

 

 

Give and Take Days 

 

Give and Take Days took place in Barnet, Camden and Islington at the following dates and 

locations: 

 

22 November 12pm - 3pm at Green Man Community Centre, Strawberry Vale, East 

Finchley, N2 9BA  

23 November 2pm - 5pm at St James' Church, 2 Sherriff Road, West Hampstead, NW6 

2AP 

29 November 12pm - 3pm at Aubert Court Community Centre, Avenell Road, Islington, N5 

1BL 

 

Residents were invited to bring unwanted household items and/or take away something they 

need for free. Large unwanted items, such as furniture, were collected in advance free of 

charge and repair workshops for electrical items were also offered. A total of 187 residents 

attended the events, bringing with them 6.1 tonnes of items for reuse and taking away 4.2 

tonnes. 

 

Outreach in the community 

 

On Tuesday 25 November a food waste stall was held alongside a family cookery class, 

funded by St Luke‟s Community Centre, a community charity based in Islington. Waste 

Prevention officers provided advice about the financial and environmental benefits of wasting 

less food at home, offering information and free tools, such as portion measurers for rice and 

spaghetti. 

 

Page 23



14 
 

Waste Electrical and Electronic 

Equipment (WEEE) stalls 

 

Staff workshops were held at eight 

Reuse and Recycling Centres in 

north London. Site staff were 

given the opportunity to learn 

more about the recycling process 

of WEEE and ask any questions 

they had. 

 

The programme of activity was the 

following: 

Borough Location 

Barnet Barnet Copthall Leisure Centre, Champions Way, Hendon, NW4 1PX 

Camden Swiss Cottage Library, Adelaide Rd, Camden, NW3 3NF 

Enfield 
Edmonton Green Shopping Centre, 62 Market Square, Edmonton, 

N9 0TZ 

Hackney Shoreditch Park, Hackney, N1 7EJ 

Haringey Wood Green Central Library, 187-197A High Rd, Wood Green, N22 6XD 

Islington Islington Green, Upper Street, N1 8DU 

Waltham Forest Waltham Forest Town Hall , Forest Rd, E17 4JF 

 

 

Furniture reuse 

 

In 2014/15, a total of 324 tonnes of furniture waste was diverted for reuse. This was 

achieved through a range of activities and partnerships: 

 

Identifying possible synergies 

 

During 2014/15, NLWA, in partnership with London Community Resource Network (LCRN), 

continued to develop links between local re-use organisations and Housing Associations 

within the region, in order to increase the level of re-use of bulky waste in north London. 

Since the project started in 2013-14, the following has been achieved: 

 

Initially, six options were developed and offered to the Housing Associations that they could 

choose from: 

 

Page 24



15 
 

1. Promotion – Tenants were made aware of local reuse initiatives and organisations in 

their community through leaflets, posters, newsletter copy and local events. 

2. Referrals – Tenants were offered vouchers to redeem against low cost furniture, 

appliances and/or paint. 

3. Collections – Full or partial voids clearances where reuse and recycling was maximised. 

4. Fit-Outs – Unfurnished properties were fitted out with single appliances to complete living 

arrangements using warranted, reused goods at the fraction of the cost of new items. 

5. Employment and Training – Reuse organisations provide standardised accredited 

volunteer training to support people in getting back to work. 

 

To promote the above options, a number of activities took place:  

 

 A freelance journalist promoted the scheme in the national Housing Press and an 

article was published in Inside Housing. 

 A contact list of Housing Associations who manage considerable housing stock in the 

north London area was devised, and for whom targeted promotion took place. 

 A breakfast briefing was hosted to introduce Housing Associations to the service 

opportunities of working with local reuse organisations. 

 Regular contact via face-to-face meetings with senior Housing Association officers 

took place for the promotion of the options. 

 

Partnerships and contracts 

 

All the above yielded the following results: 

 

 Origin Housing Association confirmed development of a full contract with Restore 

Community Projects to deliver voids clearances. 

 Notting Hill Housing Group confirmed development of a contract with Restore 

Community Projects to deliver voids clearances from their properties in Barnet.   

 New arrangements to supply paint were made between Forest Recycling Project and 
five other projects, namely Bright Sparks, Home Again, Petit Miracles, Healthy Planet 
and Splash Pillion. 

 Notting Hill Housing agreed a fit-out/referral service with London Reuse Network 
members across London as part of their welfare provision. In north London, this 
service is offered to residents in Barnet and Enfield where Notting Hill Housing 
operate. 

 Viridian has agreed a referral scheme and a fit out service with ReStore as part of 
their financial inclusion strategy. The service to Viridian residents includes the 
provision of “fit-out packs” at advantageous prices for their tenants and referral of 
residents in urgent need when they are moving in to a property.  

 The Guinness Trust fit out service was agreed in September with a start date at the 
end of October. 

 Two voids clearance trials took place between Restore and Camden Housing 
Association (clearance of five premises) and the North London Muslim Housing 
Association (clearance of three premises), even though formal agreements were not 
signed. 

 Forest Recycling Project secured annual membership of paint reuse scheme with two 
housing associations, namely Friday Hill TMO (Waltham Forest) and Newlon Fusion 
(Haringey).  
 

Page 25



16 
 

Partnerships were developed between: 

 

 Asham Homes and Restore 

 Kier Voids and Bright Sparks  

 Bemerton TMO and Restore  

 Islington & Shoreditch Housing Association and Forest Recycling Project  

 Origin Housing and Forest Recycling Project  

 Notting Hill Housing Trust and  ReStore  

 Viridian Housing and ReStore  

 Friday Hill TMO and Forest Recycling Project 

 Newlon Fusion and Forest Recycling Project 

 
 

University halls of residence 

 

As part of an engagement initiative with the non-housing sector to maximise reuse, a 

mapping exercise and survey of organisations providing residential services other than 

Housing Associations was conducted. The survey included prisons, care homes, hostels and 

university halls of residence, all of which have not previously been approached by the reuse 

sector in London. Results of the survey concluded that there was high level of potential 

diversion through reuse from university halls of residence, and as a result the following was 

achieved: 

 

 Trials and on-going agreements from the non-Housing Association action plan took 

place via agreement with community re-use group CRISP, with 0.7 tonnes of material 

collected for re-use from UNITE Halls of Residence in a pilot. The pilot scheme was 

developed into a contract with CRISP, a registered supplier of UNITE.  

 Nineteen collections were carried out from 11 separate halls. This resulted in 18.4 

tonnes of material collected which yielded a total of 14.7 tonnes recycled and reused 

between January 2014 and April 2014. A further expansion of the service took place 

between April and October 2014 when eight more universities were engaged clearing 

halls of residence in the NLWA area of 44.9 tonnes amounting to a total of 59.6 

tonnes. 

 A ReLove event, in collaboration with CRISP, was held in William Wyatt Hall 

(Hackney) in January 2014 to promote re-use.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26



17 
 

Give and Take Days 

 

 
 

NLWA worked in partnership with London Community Resource Network (LCRN) to run 14 

Give and Take Days across north London (two events per borough). Give and Take Days 

are free community exchange events where residents are invited to bring unwanted 

household items and take away something they need for free.  

 

The events ran in two separate rounds, from October 2014 through to February 2015, 

attracting a total of 1,024 attendees who brought 21.9 tonnes of items and took away 14.7 

tonnes for reuse. Give and Take Days also included the following free services: 

 

Page 27



18 
 

 A collection of bulky items arranged via email or telephone for a limited period prior to 

the Give and Take Days. 

 Repair workshops for electrical items. 

 Awareness raising and information stalls. 

 

Results from the project are shown in the table below: 

 

Event Date 

Outcomes (tonnes) 

Tonnage 
Donated  

Bulky items 
collected 

from 
householders 

Disposed 
of 

 
Repaired 

Haringey 18/10/2014 2.6 0.9 0.1 0 

Enfield 25/10/2014 1.9 1 0.06 0.037 

Waltham 
Forest 01/11/2014 1 0.6 0.04 

0.054 

Hackney 16/11/2014 1.4 0.5 0.01 0.067 

Barnet 22/11/2014 1.9 0.8 0.02 0.051 

Camden 23/11/2014 1.4 0.3 0.01 0.031 

Islington 29/11/2014 2.8 0.6 0.1 0 

Haringey 24/01/2015 1.6 0.3 0.01 0.051 

Camden 31/01/2015 2.1 0.2 0.02 0.036 

Waltham 
Forest 14/02/2015 0.6 0.1 0.02 

0.011 

Islington 15/02/2015 1.4 0.3 0.03 0.022 

Barnet 21/02/2015 0.6 0.3 0 0.006 

Enfield 22/02/2015 1.1 0.4 0 0.014 

Hackney 01/03/2015 1.5 0.5 0.05 0.043 

Total 21.9 6.8 0.5 0.4 

 

Note: Items for the Give and Take days are both donated on the day and also collected from 

householders who request a collection e.g. of bulky furniture that is difficult to transport to 

the event. 

 

Feedback from 195 attendees indicated that 76% of the respondents thought that their 

knowledge of waste prevention and re-use had improved as a result of attending an event. 

Additionally, 82% of respondents rated the event they attended either excellent or very good 

with 90% willing to attend a Give and Take day in the future.  

By encouraging re-use through Give and Take Days the Authority can assist in preventing 

reusable material going for disposal and at the same time provide free goods to local 

residents. There is also the added benefit that residents, by attending information stand on 

the event days, they develop a broader understanding about how to reduce the amount of 

waste they produce and increases awareness of the financial and environmental benefits of 

such activities. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28



19 
 

Textile re-use  

 

Swishing  

 

In 2014/15, the Waste Prevention Team continued to promote swishing (clothes-swapping), 

encouraging residents and community groups to hold their own swishing parties to refresh 

their wardrobes and save money at the same time. Swishing party packs are available for 

download from the website at http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/reuse/clothes-and-

shoes/swishing.  

 

Over 2014/15, the Wise Up To Waste Swishing page received 724 unique page views and 

there were 13 requests for swishing packs using the online form. In particular, swishing was 

heavily promoted to students at Fresher Fairs around the universities in north London. A 

student swishing poster and a selection of Party Packs were offered alongside the Waste 

Less Food, Save More Money promotional material on stalls reserved at university fairs. In 

total, 92 guides were distributed to residents directly whilst 79 were distributed at north 

London universities by Waste Prevention Officers. 

 

During February 2015, a  swishing advertisement and advertorial were placed in borough 

publications across north London to provide some basic information about swishing and 

promote the Authority‟s swishing party pack, as well as textiles recycling at Reuse and 

Recycling Centres.  

 

A copy of the swishing advertisement can be seen below. 

Page 29

http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/docs/waste-prevention/swishing-party-pack.pdf?sfvrsn=0
http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/reuse/clothes-and-shoes/swishing
http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/reuse/clothes-and-shoes/swishing
http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/reuse/clothes-and-shoes/swishing


20 
 

 
 

The advertisements were circulated to a total of 345,000 households, as listed in the table 

below: 

 

Publication Circulation 

Barnet and Potters Bar Times 25,321 

Hendon and Finchley Press 25,601 

Edgware and Mill Hill 73,610 

Camden New Journal  41,338 

Enfield Independent 60,359 

Hackney Today 90,848 

Haringey Independent 18,659 

Islington and Hackney Gazette 10,608 

Waltham Forest & Chingford Guardian  4,802 

Total 346,344  

 

Officers also investigated ways for NLWA to be involved in north London swishing events 

delivered by independent organisations and individuals. In the second year of the Plan 

Officers will explore this opportunity further and identify the best ways of linking NLWA‟s 

activity to local swishing activity by supporting existing networks.  

 

 

Page 30



21 
 

London Textiles Forum 

 

NLWA continues to be a member of the London Textiles Forum. The aim of the Forum is to 

share good practice and subsequently increase the diversion of both clothing and non-

clothing textiles waste from landfill and other final forms of disposal in London and assist in 

delivering the London Mayor‟s Municipal Waste Management and Business Strategies.  

 

The Forum provides a platform for members to openly discuss issues surrounding textile 

recycling and re-use, and to collectively work towards a common goal of increasing textile 

reuse and recycling in the capital. 

 

North London Waste Prevention Exchange 

 

NLWA hosted an event on 11 March 2015 at Inmarsat Conference Centre, 99 City Road, 

London EC1Y 1AX, to share information on best practice of waste prevention best practice 

in urban areas. The event also provided NLWA with the opportunity to engage with 

stakeholders for the development of the Waste Prevention Plan 2016-18. A total of 96 

people participated in the North London Waste Prevention Exchange. Participants shared 

best practice on waste prevention actions and monitoring techniques and a number of 

stakeholders gave presentations on their experiences.  

 

Speakers and delegates were from the following sectors: 
 

 National bodies (Defra and WRAP); 

 International bodies (Catalan Waste Agency, ACR+, ORDIF); 

 Regional bodies (GLA, LWARB, London Councils); 

 Networking groups; 

 Local Authority officers; 

 Project partners and other consultants; and 

 Community networks (LCRN, LRL, etc).  
 

The table below shows the full list of chairs and speakers at the seminar: 
 

Name Contact name  Job Title 

SESSION CHAIRS AND REMARKS 

Waltham Forest Council Cllr Clyde Loakes  Chair of NLWA and Deputy Leader 

London Borough of 
Hackney 

Cllr Feryal 
Demirci 

Chair of NLWA Member Recycling 
Working Group and Cabinet Member 
for Neighbourhoods 

The University of 
Northampton  Margaret Bates 

Professor of Sustainable Wastes 
Management 

   North London Waste 
Authority David Beadle Managing Director 

SPEAKERS 

Association of Cities 
and Regions for 
Sustainable Resource 

Philippe 
Micheaux Naudet Project Manager 

Page 31



22 
 

Management (ACR+) 

Catalan Waste Agency  
Alfred Vara 
Blanco Head of Waste Prevention 

Defra Andrew Woodend  Statistician 

Eunomia    Thomas Vergunst Consultant 

London Re-use Limited 
(LRL) 

Richard 
Featherstone   Development Manager 

London Waste and 
Recycling Board 
(LWARB) Antony Buchan  Head of Programme  

North London Waste 
Authority(NLWA) Dimitra Rappou  Waste Prevention Manager 

Ile de France Region 
Waste Management 
Observatory (ORDIF) Jean-Benoit Bel Project Manager 

Waste and Resources 
Action Programme 
(WRAP) Viktoria Salisbury 

Community Partnerships Project 
Manager  

 

The conference provided an ideal opportunity to gain more in-depth feedback about 
delegates‟ attitudes towards the measurement of waste prevention activity, as well as 
general priorities and barriers in the industry. A questionnaire was therefore sent to 
participants in advance. A total of 61 surveys were completed and initial analysis formed part 
of the conclusion for the day that was delivered by NLWA‟s Managing Director. Key results 
are as follows: 
 
The overwhelming majority of respondents agreed that it is important to measure waste 
prevention activity. Reasons cited for this were to measure effectiveness; ensure value for 
money; help make the case for further funding; set goals and inspire others to continue. 
Respondents also considered food waste to be the most difficult challenge in an urban 
setting, as indicated in figure below: 
 

 
 

Participants were asked the reason for their choice and provided the following: 

 

Food waste
52%

Furniture
23%

Electrical
18%

Textiles
2%

Nappies
3% Packaging

2%

WHICH ONE WASTE STREAM PRESENTS THE MOST DIFFICULT 
WASTE PREVENTION CHALLENGE IN AN URBAN SETTING?

Page 32



23 
 

 Food waste: There is a reluctance to admit that we waste food; it is difficult to 

change behaviours; food prices are relatively low. 

 Furniture: Weight of furniture; storage space required; difficulty with mattress 

recycling.  

 Electrical: It is often cheaper to replace than repair; many consumer goods become 

obsolete quickly. 

 

Participants were asked what they felt should be the balance between qualitative and 

quantitative methods for evaluating the impact of waste prevention activity. Results found 

that 56% of respondents felt there should be an emphasis on qualitative methods; 21% felt 

there should be an emphasis on quantitative methods and 23% felt there should be an equal 

balance between both methods. 

 

As illustrated below, the majority of participants considered tonnage diversion to be the 

primary driver for waste prevention activity. 

 

 
 

Finally, participants were asked to identify the most important thing that would make waste 

prevention an important and distinct part of a waste strategy, both locally and nationally. 

Responses included: 

 

 Mandatory local authority waste prevention plans; 

 Clearer production of key performance indicators; 

 Implementation of a „pay as you throw‟ model; 

 More specific producer responsibilities. 

 

 

Evaluation of NLWA’s waste prevention programme 

 

In 2014/15, NLWA commissioned research into the monitoring and evaluation of its waste 

prevention programme and the impact of the activities set out in North London Waste 

Prevention Plan. Currently, there are no nationally agreed tools or metrics to use in 

assessing the impact of waste prevention activity and NLWA officers appointed an 

independent consultant, namely Resource Futures, to review the Authority‟s current 

Agree
70%

Disagree 
30%

TONNAGE DIVERSION IS THE PRIMARY DRIVER FOR WASTE 
PREVENTION ACTIVITY. 

Page 33



24 
 

approach to measuring the impact of its waste prevention programme and to provide 

recommendations for a comprehensive measurement regime that NLWA can use for 

evaluating the impact of future waste prevention programmes. This work will then be 

updated when Defra produces its national evaluation methodology. 

 

The review includes consideration of comparable work carried out by other organisations 

and provision of a robust future-proof monitoring and evaluation methodology document for 

NLWA. It is anticipated that future monitoring of the waste prevention programme will be 

wider than just waste tonnage avoidance with proposals likely to additionally report on 

carbon savings, financial and social impact and to capture and communicate the impacts of 

the work to a wide group of beneficiaries.  

 

The following conclusions were drawn from the assessment: 

 

 For the majority of activities, an attempt is being made to measure outputs and 

outcomes.  

 The data-gathering methods used are sensible in comparison to the type of activity, 

e.g. where waste is directly handled during an activity it is measured during that 

activity and survey methods are used for activities where a physical weighing of 

waste would be difficult or impossible.  

 NLWA‟s monitoring and evaluation regime does not currently cover metrics for 

greenhouse gas savings or social outcomes, e.g. value of incomes generated 

through employment in second-hand furniture shops and consumer savings, and this 

is something that can be considered in the future.  

 Long-term benefits of waste prevention activity are not currently reported, but could 

include reduced operating and capital costs of waste collection across the NLWA 

area. 

 

 

Work with local businesses 

 

The government‟s plastic bag levy, due to commence from October 2015, will require large 

retailers to charge customers 5p for every single use plastic bag they distribute. In an effort 

to engage customers of smaller shops, NLWA officers devised a project in partnership with 

local retailers, whereby customers are offered a reusable bag, in exchange for a used plastic 

one. 

 

Twenty five small retailers from across north London were recruited to participate in the 

project; three businesses in each north London borough (with the exception of Haringey, 

where a number of smaller business units have been enlisted). Business owners signed 

Service Level Agreements (SLAs) and were each delivered 250 Wise Up To Waste branded 

reusable bags, along with information leaflets to hand to participating customers and a 

promotional sticker and poster. 

 

The businesses that participated in the project were: 

 

Page 34



25 
 

Borough Business Type Address 

Barnet Household/hardware 

store 

Bargain buys, 4 Hadley Parade, High Street, 

EN5 5SX 

Shoe shop Wanders, 180 High Street Barnet EN5 5SZ 

General store Euro Food and Wine, 5 High Street EN5 5UE 

Camden Bookshop The Book Warehouse, 155 Camden High 

Street, NW1 7JY 

Lighting shop Ryness Electrical, 67 Camden High Street, 

NW1 7JL 

Health food shop Earth Natural Foods, 200 Kentish Town Road, 

NW5 2AE 

Enfield Fabric shop Rolls and Rems, The Concourse, N9 0TY 

Gift shop Giftland, 136 Fore Street, N18 2XA 

Toy shop Treacey's Toy Store, 717 Green Lanes, N21 

3RX 

Hackney Health food shop FOOD FOR ALL, 3 Cazenove Road, N16 6PA 

Paint shop J's Decor8, Unit 5, 230-240 Stoke Newington 

High Street, N16 7HU 

Bookshop Stoke Newington Bookshop, 159 Stoke 

Newington High Street, N16 0NY 

Haringey Christian bookshop Dominion Christian Bookshop, 9 The 

Broadway, High Road, N22 6DS 

Card shop just write, The Mall Wood Green, 159 High 

Road, N22 6YQ 

Bookshop Big Green Bookshop, Unit 1 Brampton Park 

Road, N22 6BG 

Women‟s clothes shop NV, The Mall Wood Green, 159 High Road, 

N22 6YQ 

Women‟s clothes shop Checkmate, The Mall Wood Green, 159 High 

Road, N22 6YQ 

Shoe shop Laces, The Mall Wood Green, 159 High Road, 

N22 6YQ 

Women‟s clothes shop Pretty Fit, The Mall Wood Green, 159 High 

Road, N22 6YQ 

Islington Grocery Chapel Green and Grocers, 72 Chapel 

Market, N1 9ER 

Bicycle shop S&S Cycles, 29 Chapel Market, N1 9EN 

Pet shop Angel Pet Supplies, 73 Chapel Market, N1 

9ER 

Waltham Forest Children‟s clothes shop Ka-Boom, 130 Hoe Street, E17 4QR 

Flower shop Petals in Bloom, 19 Orford Road, E17 9NL 

School uniform shop Victoria 2, 246 Hoe Street, E17 3AX 

 

A copy of the promotional poster can be seen below. 

Page 35

http://www.wanders.co.uk/
http://www.thebookwarehouse.co.uk/
http://www.ryness.co.uk/stores/camden-high-street
http://www.earthnaturalfoods.co.uk/contactus.htm
mailto:sales@rollsandrems.com
mailto:giftland@hotmail.co.uk
http://www.treaceystoystore.com/
http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/Sitefinity/Dialog/www.foodforall.co.uk
http://www.stokenewingtonbookshop.co.uk/
mailto:ministerkwame@gmail.com
mailto:Enquiries@biggreenbookshop.com
http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/reuse/carrier-bags/www.mountainbikeslondon.co.uk
http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/reuse/carrier-bags/angelpetsupplies@live.co.uk
http://www.ka-boomshop.co.uk/
http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/reuse/carrier-bags/www.petalsinbloom.net


26 
 

 
 

The project commenced in February 2015 and was promoted via the website, at 

http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/reuse/carrier-bags/bag-it-up-reuse, on social media, and in 

a press release, which resulted in two borough publications running the story. 

 

The project is still underway as at April 2015, but so far approximately 3,500 plastic bags 

have been swapped with reusable bags by north London residents.  

 

An evaluation questionnaire completed by participating businesses showed the following 

results: 

 

 86% of respondents felt customers responded positively to the project; 

 62% of respondents said they saw customers returning with the reusable bag; 

 52% of respondents said that the project had allowed them to save money as they 

gave out fewer plastic bags; 

 95% of respondents would be interested to participate in a similar project in future. 

 

Feedback shows that the project has been received positively by local retailers but also 

assisted NLWA with building relationships with north London businesses and gaining their 

trust. This will enable assessment of the difficulties and barriers that small north London 

businesses face in relation to waste prevention and what support they may need in the 

future. 

 

 

Page 36

http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/reuse/carrier-bags/bag-it-up-reuse


27 
 

Waste Education 

 

Intensive Waste Education Project 

 

Over the autumn term, two schools per north London borough participated in an intensive 
education programme. Schools were offered a package of sessions by the local 
environmental charity ecoACTIVE, who NLWA contracted to deliver the work, on the topics 
of food waste reduction, textiles reuse/recycling and waste electrical and electronic 
equipment reuse/recycling. Sessions included assemblies, waste audits, school 
„swishing‟ (or clothes swapping) events and parent coffee mornings on the topic of food 
waste reduction. 
 
The sessions were developed in collaboration with lead teachers in order to meet the needs 
of each school. As part of the project, schools were offered a resource pack which includes 
customised information to suit the needs of the north London schools. ecoACTIVE also 
engaged the wider school community of parents and carers through existing coffee morning 
events, or playground „roadshows‟.  
 
Participating schools are outlined in the table below: 

 

Borough School 

Barnet Danegrove Primary School 

Child‟s Hill Primary School 

Camden Rhyl Primary School 

Abacus Belsize Primary School 

Enfield Raglan Schools 

Prince of Wales 

Hackney Jubilee Primary School 

Queensbridge Primary School 

Haringey Crowland Primary School 

St Ann's Primary School 

Islington Grafton Primary School 

Gillespie Primary School 

Waltham 
Forest 

Davies Lane Primary School 

Our Lady and Saint George‟s Primary School 

 

 

Overall, 1,893  pupils were directly  engaged along with 87 members of school staff at 14 

school meetings and two staff training workshops. EcoACTIVE delivered 73 pupil workshops 

and hosted 15 assemblies. With regards to parent engagement, 253 parents were engaged 

in waste prevention discussion at six parent events.  

 

The project was qualitatively evaluated using a quiz, given to both staff and pupils before, 

and again, after the sessions. Results showed that engagement activities had improved 

pupils‟ understanding of the need to reduce waste, as well as knowledge about possible 

ways to achieve this. Furthermore, school staff felt better equipped to prevent waste. These 

key findings are listed below: 

 

 40% more pupils were able to suggest 2 or more ways to prevent waste at school. 

 36% of pupils were more able to explain a problem caused by waste. 

 42% more staff were able to discuss waste prevention efforts at school. 

Page 37



28 
 

 40% more staff reported being aware of waste prevention in the curriculum. 
 

Results demonstrate that as a result of the project pupils are more aware of ways to prevent 

waste and schools are now better equipped to provide waste prevention information to the 

pupils and have greater awareness of waste channels and support available to them. 

Parents and carers are also better informed of the ways they can prevent waste at home. 

 

 

Circus Takeaway Performances 

 

A programme of composting activity was delivered to mark Compost Awareness Week in 

May 2014. The theatre company Circus Takeaway was commissioned to deliver 

performances of its composting education show in 14 north London primary schools (two 

schools per borough), as follows: 

 

Borough Date School 

Barnet 08/05/2014 Holy Trinity CoE Primary School, Eagans Close, N2 8GA 

Queenswell Junior School, Sweets Way, N20 0NQ 

Camden 01/05/2014 St Aloysius Catholic Junior School, Aldenham Street, NW1 
1PS 

21/05/2014 Swiss Cottage School, 80 Avenue Road, NW8 6HX 

Enfield 06/05/2014 Merryhills Primary School, Bincote Road, EN2 7RE 

Hadley Wood School, Courtleigh Avenue, EN4 0HT 

Hackney 09/05/2014 St Scholastica‟s RC Primary School, Kenninghall Road, E5 
8BS 

Kingsmead Primary School, Kingsmead Way, E9 5PP 

Haringey 07/05/2014 Chestnuts Primary School, Black Boy Lane, N15 3AS 

Coleridge Primary School, 77 Crouch End Hill, N8 8DN 

Islington 01/05/2014 Ashmount School, 83 Crouch Hill, N8 9EG 

30/04/2014 Canonbury School, Canonbury Road, N1 2UT 

St Andrew‟s CoE Primary School, Mathilda Street, N1 0LB 

Waltham Forest 02/05/2014 Coppermill Primary School, Edward Road, E17 6PB 

St Mary‟s CoE VA Primary School, Brooke Road, E17 9HJ 

 

Performances were followed by an immediate feedback questionnaire for teachers and a 

survey conducted six weeks later to ascertain how much learning pupils retained. Out of the 

49 teachers who completed a questionnaire: 

 

 94% rated it as extremely enjoyable for pupils, with the remaining 6% rating it as 

enjoyable. 

 94% said it had increased pupil knowledge either a fair amount or a lot. 

 On average, teachers felt that 63% of pupils would talk about composting at home, 

after seeing the show. 

 94% of teachers said they would now do more composting at school, as a result of 

the shows.  

 

 

 

 

Page 38



29 
 

The pupil survey, conducted 6 weeks later gave the following results: 

 

 When provided a list of items, 80% of pupils were able to accurately state which were 

compostable or not. 

 66% of pupils said they talked about composting at home after the show. 

 61% of pupils said they talked about composting at school after the show. 

 When asked the reasons that we should compost, the top three reasons cited were 

to make less waste; to feed the garden and to save the environment. 

 

 

Unwanted Mail 

 

A series of no junk mail adverts were placed in north London Council magazines and 

newspapers at the start of October 2014, highlighting the environmental problems caused as 

a result of junk mail. The advert also highlighted „five easy ways‟ to reduce junk mail and 

detailed how residents can obtain a „no junk mail‟ information pack. A copy of the 

advertisement can be seen below. 

 

 
 

The advertisements appeared in the publications listed below and were collectively 

circulated to 632,785 households: 

 

Publication Circulation 

Barnet and Potters Bar Times 25,321 

Hendon and Finchley Times 25,601 

Edgware and Mill Hill Times 73,610 

Camden New Journal 41,338 

Enfield Independent 60,359 

Hackney Today 90,848 

Page 39



30 
 

Haringey People 105,300 

Islington Gazette 10,608 

Islington Life Magazine 102,800 

Waltham Forest News 97,000 

Total 632,785 

 

As illustrated on the graph below, following launch of the advertising campaign at the start of 

October (indicated by the green line) there was a noticeable increase in Mail Preference 

Service (MPS) registrations; from 655 to 996, which represents an increase of 34%. 

 

 
 

Evidence suggests that there is still high demand for junk mail reduction information in north 

London and that the packs are very popular with residents. Over 2014/15, a total 8,425 MPS 

registrations were made across all the boroughs.  

 

Real Nappies 

 

 

The Authority pays a subsidy of up to £54.15 per baby to parents in north London who use 

reusable (real) nappies rather than disposable ones. The level of subsidy reflects the saving 

to the Authority of not having to dispose of the babies‟ disposable nappies. Two systems are 

in operation: 

 

- A voucher system where parents receive a voucher that can be redeemed against 

the cost of a reusable nappy laundry service; and  

Page 40



31 
 

- A cash back system where parents buy the nappies and then claim back up to 

£54.15 retrospectively. 

 

The table below shows the uptake of the subsidy scheme in the seven north London 

boroughs in 2014-15. 

 

Borough Total Children/Vouchers issued 

Barnet 39 

Enfield 31 

Waltham Forest 37 

Camden 129 

Hackney 290 

Haringey 159 

Islington 175 

Total  860 

 

A total of 860 vouchers and cash back claims were issued and an estimated 362 tonnes 

of nappy waste will be avoided as a result of the scheme. 

  

North London parents are fairly consistently receptive to the idea of using real nappies. 

Since 2007 when the scheme first came into effect, 7,373 vouchers and cash back claims 

have been redeemed and more than 3,000 tonnes of nappy waste has been avoided. 

 

 

Waste Less, Save More: A Guide for North London Households 

 

In 2014/15, a new household reference guide was produced for north London residents. The 

aim of the guide was to highlight the need for waste reduction while shopping, by adjusting 

purchasing habits, reusing, recycling and composting instead of disposing of items. It 

includes a range of advice and information about the benefits of and rationale behind 

sustainable living. Topics covered include food waste reduction; packaging; carrier bags; 

buying products as refills or concentrates; buying in bulk; repair and reuse. 

 

The guide was launched via a press release, as well as being promoted via website and 

social media. It is available for download at www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/waste-less 

 

Page 41

http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/waste-less


32 
 

 
 

 

Waste Less, Save More: A Guide for North London Businesses 

 

An updated version of the Authority‟s business guide was launched in 2014, designed in a 

similar style to the new guide for households. It is available for download from NLWA‟s Wise 

Up To Waste website at http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/businesses/free-business-

resources. The guide provides north London businesses with background on the benefits of 

managing waste efficiently as well as ideas to reduce waste. It also pinpoints localised 

sources of free advice and information available to north London businesses. 

 

Two new case studies have been drawn up since the previous edition of the guide to 

demonstrate fresh ideas and to show what can be achieved in practice: 

 

 The Arcola Theatre in Hackney provided some unique examples of furniture reuse as 

well as an overall holistic approach towards waste minimisation. 

 The Haelan Centre in Haringey, a 40-year-old family run business, sells organic food 

and natural health remedies. The business encourages customers to return empty 

bottles to the store as suppliers offer 5p for every bottle returned to their factories for 

reuse or recycling. 

 

A limited number of printed copies of each guide are available, and 87 digital copies have 

been distributed to interested parties, including: 

 

 All contributors to the guide. 

Page 42

http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/
http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/
http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/businesses/free-business-resources
http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/businesses/free-business-resources


33 
 

 North London Business Improvement Districts (BIDs) or other organisations that 

support small businesses. 

 Borough waste prevention officers (many have included the link on borough 

websites). 

 Borough commercial waste teams. 

 

 
 

 

Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE) 

 

Waste Prevention Officers worked alongside the NLWA‟s selected producer compliance 

scheme, DHL Envirosolutions, to provide and promote WEEE collection services during the 

year. NLWA retendered the service in 2014 and DHL secured the contract untii December 

2016, part of which is a dedicated officer for north London to oversee the WEEE programme. 

The overall aim was to achieve an increase in WEEE tonnages in line with the WEEE 

Directive and the London Mayor‟s Municipal Waste Management Strategy.  

From January 2014 to December 2015 the following results were achieved: 

 The scheme “123 Recycle for Free” has been running since January 2012 and is 

available for all residents, businesses and charity organisations in north London. 

244.51 tonnes of WEEE were collected from residents and businesses via the 

kerbside collection; 

 DHL installed 64 small WEEE (sWEEE) on-street bring banks, which provided a way 

to recycle sWEEE without having to book a collection.  51.77 tonnes of WEEE were 

collected from small WEEE bring sites across north London; 

Page 43



34 
 

 There are 10 Reuse and Recycling Centres in the north London area and they all 

have WEEE collections in place. 2,998 tonnes of WEEE were collected from Reuse 

and Recycling Centres. 

 Direct engagement of north London residents at the following large summer events: 

Borough Event Number of 
conversations 

Barnet East Finchley Festival 181 

Camden Fair in the Square 327 

Enfield Palmers Green 226 

Haringey Haringey Green Fair 79 

Islington Angel Canal Festival 297 

 

NLWA and DHL also worked with Wastebuster, a national environmental education 

programme, with education centres and an online recycling reward programme aiming to 

engage, inspire and empower children to make sustainable lifestyle choices. Through 

educational work that Wastebuster delivers to north London schools, 215 resources were 

downloaded by north London schools since January. Wastebuster also launched a 

promotional campaign to encourage more resource downloads and to promote recycling 

collections as well as a competition to win a school assembly and a digital camera for the 

school that collects the most WEEE. Furthermore, 14 schools booked collections for WEEE 

and textiles. 

 

DHL supported NLWA‟s intensive education project by funding WEEE sessions and 

providing the WEEE Education Pack to schools and also supported NLWA‟s Give and Take 

Days. At the events officers provided information to the public about electrical reuse and 

recycling and also supported the electrical repair workshops that took place. 

 

The end of September 2014 a leaflet about WEEE recycling was delivered to households in 

the vicinity of the three lowest performing sWEEE banks in each borough. Results show that 

there was a tonnage increase at a number of the banks, with Barnet, Camden, Hackney and 

Haringey being the boroughs where the difference was most noticeable.  

 

Apart from outreach and educational interventions, a number of other operational activities 

took place with regards to reuse of WEEE.  

 

Restore Community Projects received their Accredited Authorised Treatment Facility (AATF) 

registration from the Environment Agency, allowing them to take electrical items for reuse 

from Reuse and Recycling Centres. Other sites that collect electrical items for reuse are 

Kings Road Reuse and Recycling Centre (Waltham Forest), Hornsey Street Reuse and 

Recycling Centre (Islington) and Regis Road Reuse and Recycling Centre (Camden). 

 

Staff training was provided to help WEEE segregation at Reuse and Recycling Centres, 

informing site staff of what happens to the WEEE that is collected on site, and why it is 

important to properly segregate items. 

 

Effective collaboration between NLWA and DHL Envirosolutions provided north London 

residents with a range of options to ensure that WEEE is diverted from landfill. Extensive 

Page 44



35 
 

service provision, combined with a range of promotional and engagement activities have 

seen the total WEEE tonnage reused and recycled in north London increase in 2014 

compared to 2013.  In 2014, 3,294 tonnes of WEEE were diverted from landfill. 

 

Working in partnership 

 

NLWA supports waste prevention practices by working with the seven north London 

boroughs and by supporting and engaging in active dialogue with a number of other national 

and regional organisations, including the Greater London Authority, the Chartered Institution 

of Wastes Management and the Waste and Resources Action Programme. 

 

Stakeholders for the development of the activity include: 

 

- Local authorities (including other waste management departments, communications 

departments, social services teams and health services); 

- National and regional bodies (including Defra,  London Waste and Recycling Board); 

- European bodies (including the Association of Cities and Regions for Sustainable 

Resource Management); 

- Voluntary and community sector (including the London Community Resource 

Network, Real Nappies for London, Furniture Reuse Network); and  

- Local residents and businesses (including local press, manufacturers and retailers, 

waste management companies and contractors) 

 

The Authority is also a member of a number of organisations as follows: 

 

- Association of Cities and Regions for Recycling and Resource Management (ACR+) 

- Local Authority Recycling Advisory Committee (LARAC) 

- London Environmental Education Forum (LEEF) 

- Sustainable Environmental Education Forum (SEED) 

- London Textiles Forum 

 

Additionally, individual officers are members or attend the meetings of a number of other 

officer based groups. 

 

 

Press Releases, Website and Social Media 

 

Press Releases 

 

The following waste prevention press releases were issued in 2014/15: 

 

Subject Title Month Issued 

DHL WEEE tonnage 
Free Kerbside Collection of Household 
Electrical Equipment in North London Boosts 
Recycling By Tonnes! 

April 2014 

Page 45



36 
 

Waste less, lunch free 
events 

„Serving up a treat this Summer, in North 
London‟ 

September 2014 

Unwanted mail „Say „no‟ to junk mail in north London‟ 
October 2014 

Give and Take days 
(Haringey) 

„Are you a Giver or a Taker? This weekend, 
you could be both!‟  

October 2014 

Give and Take days 
(Enfield) 

„Are you a Giver or a Taker? This weekend, 
you could be both!‟  

October 2014 

Give and Take days 
(Waltham Forest) 

„Are you a Giver or a Taker? This weekend, 
you could be both!‟  

October 2014 

Give and Take days 
(Hackney) 

„Are you a Giver or a Taker? This weekend, 
you could be both!‟  

November 2014 

Give and Take days 
(Barnet) 

„Are you a Giver or a Taker? This weekend, 
you could be both!‟  

November 2014 

Give and Take days 
(Camden) 

„Are you a Giver or a Taker? This weekend, 
you could be both!‟  

November 2014 

Give and Take days 
(Islington) 

„Are you a Giver or a Taker? This weekend, 
you could be both!‟  

November 2014 

European Week for 
Waste Reduction 

„NLWA invites you to celebrate European 
Week for Waste Reduction‟ 

November 2014 

European Week for 
Waste Reduction 

Post-event press release for NLWA‟s activities 
for European Week for Waste Reduction 

December 2014 

Art installation project 
and kinteractive  

Details of art project with north London schools 
to create festive waste prevention installations 

December 2014 

Give and Take days 
(Haringey) 

It‟s all about „Give and Take‟ this weekend in 
Haringey  

January 2015 

Give and Take days 
(Camden) 

It‟s all about „Give and Take‟ this weekend in 
Camden  

January 2015 

Give and Take days 
(Waltham Forest) 

It‟s all about „Give and Take‟ this weekend in 
Waltham Forest  

February 2015 

Give and Take days 
(Islington) 

It‟s all about „Give and Take‟ this weekend in 
Islington  

February 2015 

Give and Take days 
(Barnet) 

It‟s all about „Give and Take‟ this weekend in 
Barnet  

February 2015 

Give and Take days 
(Camden) 

It‟s all about „Give and Take‟ this weekend in 
Camden  

February 2015 

Give and Take days 
(Hackney) 

It‟s all about „Give and Take‟ this weekend in 
Hackney  

February 2015 

Page 46



37 
 

Bag yourself a freebie 
Project with north London small and medium 
enterprises, encouraging customers to swap 
old plastic bags for reusable ones 

February 2015 

Waste Prevention 
experts enlighten us at 
industry event 

Speakers from across the UK and Europe 
share waste prevention best practice at 
NLWA‟s seminar event 

March 2015 

 

Wise Up To Waste Website 

 

The table below shows the top ten most-viewed pages on the Wise Up To Waste website for 

the period of November 2014 to March 2015. Changes in website structure meant that data 

was not available prior to this period. The data refer to „unique‟ views only, thereby 

discounting repeated views by the same person. 

 

Page November December January February March Total 

Annual 
Pro-
rated 

amount  

Waste Electricals and 
Electronic Equipment 7 90 264 205 262 828 

 
1,987 

Reuse and recycling centres 
 

144 216 201 251 812 
 

1,949 

Give and take days 87 56 98 164 108 513 1,231 

Events 80 77 79 94 70 400 60 

Food waste game 0 0 17 104 209 330 792 

Home 30 45 41 74 113 303 727 

Junk mail 24 15 73 80 103 295 708 

Contact NLWA 33 44 56 68 84 285 684 

Recycling - what happens 38 38 25 104 64 269 646 

Materials recycling a-z 17 41 38 59 85 240 576 

 

The graph below shows unique views to the Waste Prevention pages only. As indicated, the 

WEEE page is the most popular, followed by Give and Take Days, Events and the food 

waste game. 

 

Page 47

http://www.wiseuptowaste.org.uk/


38 
 

 
 

 

Social Media 

 

The Authority has a consumer-facing Twitter account from which 282 waste prevention 

tweets were issued in 2014-15. The Wise Up To Waste Twitter profile gained 406 new 

followers throughout the year – an average of 34 per month, taking the total up to 786. 

Some examples of tweets from 2014/15 are shown below: 

 

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900

W
as

te
 E

le
ct

ri
ca

ls
 a

n
d

 …

G
iv

e 
an

d
 t

ak
e 

d
ay

s

Ev
en

ts

Fo
o

d
 w

as
te

 g
am

e

Ju
n

k 
m

ai
l

Fo
o

d
 w

as
te

 c
h

al
le

n
ge

 …

Sc
h

o
o

ls
 e

ve
n

ts
 a

n
d

 …

Fo
o

d
 w

as
te

R
ec

ip
es

W
as

te
 le

ss

H
o

w
 t

o
 r

ed
u

ce
 y

o
u

r …

Sw
is

h
in

g

R
eu

se

Eu
ro

p
ea

n
 W

ee
k 

fo
r …

C
ar

ri
er

 b
ag

s

Fu
rn

it
u

re

W
as

te
 f

re
e 

 C
h

ri
st

m
as

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

ex
ch

an
ge

B
u

si
n

es
se

s

Fr
ee

 b
u

si
n

es
s 

re
so

u
rc

es

Sc
h

o
o

ls

B
u

si
n

es
s 

w
as

te
 le

ss
 …

Most-viewed pages November 2014 - March 
2015

Unique page views

Page 48



39 
 

 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 3  

Report for:  Environment and Community Safety Scrutiny Panel 
 
Item number:  
 
Title: Update on progress with the implementation of the 

recommendations of the Scrutiny Review of Waste and Recycling 
Parts I and II:  New waste and recycling system and further policy 
options to increase recycling.  

 
Report  
authorised by :  Stephen McDonnell, Assistant Director Environmental Services & 

Community Safety 
 
Lead Officer: Tom Hemming, Tel: 020 8489 5625,  

Email: tom.hemming@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Ward(s) affected: All 
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: N/A 
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 
 
1.1 The second report of the Environment and Housing Scrutiny Panel on the waste 

and recycling service was received by Cabinet in June 2013.  The report 
contained a number of recommendations in regards to how recycling rates 
could be further improved in Haringey to which Cabinet gave its response.  An 
update was provided in February 2014 in regard to the recommendations that 
were agreed or partially agreed and this report provides a further update on the 
progress being made. 
 

2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
 
2.1 The council has set challenging recycling targets aimed at reaching 40% 

recycling by 2016.   To achieve this the council provides recycling services that 
enable all residents to recycle the majority of the waste they produce.    

 
2.2 The key challenge continues to be to engage with and prompt behaviour 

change in residents who do not manage their waste responsibly, whether it be 
not making use of recycling services or flytipping waste. 

 
2.3 More joined up working between engagement and enforcement is required to 

deliver change, part of which must involve raising the profile of the cost of waste 
to the taxpayer in the context of severely reduced budgets that are set to go 
down further.  

  
3. Recommendations  

 
3.1  That the update on progress as shown in Appendix 1 is noted. 
 
4. Reasons for decision  

Page 51 Agenda Item 9



 

Page 2 of 3  

 
4.1  Not applicable. 
 
5. Alternative options considered 
 
5.1  Not applicable. 
 
6. Background information 

 
6.1 In each of the years of the current contract we have successfully achieved the 

recycling target, with performance of 37.2% in 2014/15 from 26.3% in 2011/12. 
 

6.2 In order to achieve the challenging recycling targets for Haringey, the council 
will need to continue working with Veolia to undertake a wide range of activities 
that are increasingly focussed on behaviour change in order to achieve greater 
participation in the services provided.   
 

6.3 An action plan designed to increase recycling and achieve the recycling targets 
over the coming years has been devised and is being regularly monitored to 
oversee progress. 
 

6.4 The key areas of the Action Plan relate to: 
 

 Increasing the usage of the food waste service from kerbside (low level) 
properties; 

 Driving up the use of services on estates, both dry recycling and food waste; 

 Testing more innovative approaches to behaviour change to support the 
above, such as the applicaton of behavioural insight theory; 

 Monitoring and engaging with residents over the allocation of residual waste 
containers, to ensure properties have the appropriate ratio of 
residual:recycling capacity; 

 Monitoring and engaging with residents in regard to the correct useage of 
containers to minimise contamination and maintain quality of recycling. 

 
7. Contribution to strategic outcomes 

 
7.1 Increasing the recycling rate will reduce disposal costs, reduce carbon impact, 

improve satisfaction and perception, and encourage greater civic responsibility.   
 
7.2 In this way it contributes to Priority 3 of the Corporate Plan (improved 

environment and clean streets) and is consistent with the Plan’s key themes, 
prioritising as it does value for money and working with our communities. 
 

8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including 
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities) 
 

8.1  Finance: The actions taken in response to the recommendations outlined in this 
report have been met from existing approved budgets. 

 
8.2 Legal: The Assistant Director of Corporate Governance notes the contents of 

the report and the update to the Environment and Community Safety Scrutiny 

Page 52



 

Page 3 of 3  

Panel and advises that there are no specific legal issues for now. The waste 
management activities referred to in the report will need to be focused on 
meeting the recycling  targets of Haringey Council. 

 
8.3 Equalities: Comprehensive collection services for dry recyclables have now 

been rolled out across Haringey, with all residents having the opportunity to use 
wheeled bins, single-use sacks or communal banks. The roll-out of food waste 
collection services to blocks of flats has delivered equality of service for 
residents living in c.25,000 properties in blocks of flats in Haringey. 

 
9. Use of Appendices 

 
9.1 Appendix 1 - Response to Environment and Housing Scrutiny Panel 

recommendations for the Waste and Recycling Services II: Further policy 
options to increase recycling - June 2013 / February 2014 / October 2015 
 

10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 

 
 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 - Response to Environment and Housing Scrutiny Panel recommendations for the Waste and Recycling 

Services II: Further policy options to increase recycling- June 2013 / February 2014 / October 2015 

Recommendations Service Response – June 
2013 

February 2014 October 2015 

1) The panel recommended 
that the Council conduct an 
audit of flatted 
developments (Homes for 
Haringey, Registered 
Housing Providers and 
Private Developments) 
across the borough to 
develop an inventory of 
waste and recycling 
infrastructure (and to collate 
any existing problems with 
waste collection i.e. whether 
there are sufficient and 
appropriate bins and if side 
waste occurs).   The 
subsequent database 
should be used to plan and 
support initiatives to 
improve waste 
management or increase 
recycling at flatted 
developments.   

 

Agreed. 
 
The service has been 
successful in obtaining 
funding to roll-out a weekly 
food waste collection service 
to the borough’s estates and 
purpose built blocks of flats. 
We are currently in the 
planning phase and part of 
this work includes 
undertaking an audit to 
develop an inventory of the 
refuse and recycling provision 
at each site. This also 
includes assessing whether 
there are opportunities to 
rationalise containers. 
 

 
 
Survey work at all blocks of flats has 
now been completed in readiness 
for the planned roll-out of weekly 
food waste collections to blocks of 
flats later in 2014. Where consistent 
over or under-capacity for refuse 
exists adjustments will be made to 
the number of refuse bins on site. 
This process is likely to happen 
gradually as each phase of the 
estates food waste roll-out proceeds 
and collection schedules are 
adjusted to suit. The estates food 
waste roll-out will happen June 
2014 to March 2015.        
 

The roll out of food waste on 
estates and improvements to dry 
recycling facilities was 
completed as of March 2015.  
The planning for the service 
involved visits to all blocks of 
flats/estates properties and 
assessment of waste container 
arrangements. 

2) Further to the audit detailed 
above, the panel 
recommended that flatted 

Agreed.  
 
There are no flatted 

 
 
A suitable site to trial dual use of 

This proposal was not 
progressed at the point of the 
roll-out of the service. Evidence 

P
age 55



Recommendations Service Response – June 
2013 

February 2014 October 2015 

developments with twin 
chutes should on a trial 
basis be converted for dual 
use (for both waste and 
recycling).  Evidence from 
this trial should determine 
further expansion of this 
scheme.   

 

developments with twin 
chutes. However, there are a 
limited number of sites which 
have two chutes, one at 
either end of the block.  The 
council, in liaison with Homes 
for Haringey, will explore the 
viability of undertaking a trial 
at one of these sites. This 
would be based on the 
premise that the two chutes 
are available to all residents 
living in the block.  
 

chutes for refuse and recycling has 
yet to be determined as resources 
for increasing recycling on estates 
has been heavily focussed on the 
estates weekly food waste trial.  
 
Officers will work with HfH and 
Veolia to determine a suitable site 
for this trial as part of the weekly 
food waste roll-out arrangements 
when there will be high levels of 
resident engagement to support and 
consolidate the changes being 
made to estate recycling collection 
services.  
 

from other boroughs that have 
tried this approach has 
suggested that this has not been 
effective and is open to 
misuse/abuse resulting in the 
contamination of recycling 
containers. 

 
3) The panel recommended 

that further work should be 
undertaken to assess the 
viability of developing a pilot 
‘Our Common Place’ 
approach (through Waste 
Watch) to increase 
recycling on local estates 
(flatted developments). This 
work should help to identify: 
 Cost benefit analysis of 

this approach; 
 Additional partners and 

Partially agreed.  
 
The service is currently in the 
process of developing a 
detailed communications plan 
focusing on estates, RSL and 
private blocks of flats as part 
of the roll-out of the weekly 
food waste collection service. 
A range of communications 
material will be developed 
and this will provide an 
opportunity to revitalise the 
dry recycling collection 

 
 
A complete set of new 
communications materials was 
developed for the weekly estates 
food waste collection trial. This 
included information also aimed at 
simultaneously increasing dry 
recycling participation. As part of the 
roll-out the Veolia Outreach Team 
undertook several rounds of door-
knocking to engage face to face 
with as many residents as possible. 
At blocks where there is an active 

Ongoing engagement with 
estates residents takes place 
through Veolia's Outreach team, 
as part of the waste 
management contract.  Driving 
up participation on estates is a 
key area of focus in the 
Recycling Action Plan. 

P
age 56



Recommendations Service Response – June 
2013 

February 2014 October 2015 

funding sources; 
 Possible pilot project 

sites. 
 

service. Part of the 
engagement activity will 
include engaging will local 
residents groups and 
associations.  
 
In addition, the 2013/14 
Communications and 
Engagement Programme 
includes a range of activities 
to increase the profile of the 
dry recycling service to all 
residents not just those 
residing on local estates.  
 
As we are undertaking the 
above activities the service 
does not think that value 
would be added by engaging 
with the Waste Watch project 
at this stage. However, there 
is an estate greening 
programme run by Time Bank 
and Groundwork in the 
borough and we aim to 
engage with this programme 
to talk to residents who take 
part in greening and waste 
related activities.    
 

resident group or association the 
Outreach Team also engaged with 
them to increase the profile of the 
trial. The indications are that these 
communications materials and the 
door-knocking/engagement  
approach has been successful in 
achieving good participation levels 
with the weekly estates food waste 
collection service and dry recycling 
tonnages have also increased.  
 
There is also a separate set of 
communications material and 
programme of engagement in place 
for blocks of flats aimed at 
increasing dry recycling participation 
over the next few months ahead of 
the estates weekly food waste roll-
out later in 2014.  
 
Work with Time Bank and 
Groundwork has yet to take place.    
 

P
age 57



Recommendations Service Response – June 
2013 

February 2014 October 2015 

4) The panel recommended 
the introduction of recycling 
bags within existing bring-
bank schemes (at flatted 
developments) should be 
further investigated with 
careful consideration being 
given to: 
 The use of reusable 

bags; 
 The policy of locking 

bins; 
 Ongoing costs if non-

reusable bags are used 
as an alternative; 

 The use of transparent 
bags (to assist if dry 
recycling is 
contaminated). 

 
 
 
 

Partially agreed. 
 
The service will develop a 
business case and indentify a 
pilot estates area in liaison 
with Homes for Haringey. 
This would include 
consideration of evidence 
from other boroughs.  

 
 
Grant funding of £200k has been 
secured to allow re-usable dry 
recycling bags to be provided to 
residents on estates as part of the 
estates weekly food waste collection 
roll-out later in 2014. 
 
 
 
    

Reusable bags were distributed 
to all households on estates and 
in blocks of flats as part of the 
communication and outreach 
drive that accompanied the roll 
out of the estates food waste 
service. 

5) The panel recommended 
that the Council ensure 
that there is adequate 
provision for waste 
management in planning 
guidance for flatted 
developments (both new 

Agreed 
 
The ‘Local Plan- Strategic 
Policies’ planning document 
includes reference to waste 
management.  
 

 
 
No further update. 
 

In early 2015, London Waste & 
Recycling Board (LWARB) and 
London Environment Directors’ 
Network (LEDNET) 
commissioned the development 
of a template planning policy  for 
waste and recycling storage and 

P
age 58



Recommendations Service Response – June 
2013 

February 2014 October 2015 

and converted). 
 

The Neighbourhood Team 
provides feedback on all 
planning applications. This 
includes consideration of 
environmental issues 
including provision of waste 
management and cleansing 
arrangements of bins stores 
and communal areas.  
 

collection in new build flatted 
properties, to encourage design 
of waste management systems 
that will help London achieve its 
recycling targets. Haringey's 
waste service recommended to 
Planning that they refer to the 
LWARB/LEDNET documents 
within our own Development 
Management Policies at the 
point these are reviewed. 
In addition a workshop session 
was held with planning officers 
for the Neighbourhood Action 
Team to communicate issues 
associated with developments 
that fail to accommodate 
sufficient and appropriately 
accessible space for waste and 
recycling. 

6) The panel recommended 
that there is a continuous 
supply of caddy bags for 
food waste as part of the 
roll-out of the planned food 
waste collection system for 
flatted developments. 

 

Agreed 
 
All properties will receive an 
initial supply of compostable 
bags as part of the roll-out 
and bags will be available to 
residents free thereafter.  
 

 
 
Compostable sacks will be supplied 
free of charge for estates food 
waste collections.  

No further update 

7) To improve communication 
between on site concierge 

      Agreed. 
 

 
 

No further update 

P
age 59



Recommendations Service Response – June 
2013 

February 2014 October 2015 

and waste collection crews 
(e.g. for access issues), 
the panel recommended 
that the contact details of 
Concierge services (or 
Estate Managers) should 
be placed on Veolia 
Collection Round Sheets.  

 

Homes for Haringey Estates 
Service Managers contact 
details have provided to 
Veolia’s management team.  
Furthermore, in the 
occurrence that Veolia are 
unable to make a scheduled 
collection updates are 
provided directly to Homes 
for Haringey.  
 

No further update.  

8) The panel recommended 
that additional information is 
provided within waste and 
recycling communications 
with local residents in 
respect of: 
 Updates of what and 
where materials can be 
recycled locally; 
 The cost of sending 
waste to landfill (landfill tax 
and gate tax) and relative 
cheaper cost of recycling; 
 The main causes of 
recycling contamination 
(food waste and clothing 
materials)  and the 
additional costs involved; 
 The opportunity cost of 

Agreed. 
 
Communications material 
previously provided to 
residents includes details of 
what material can be recycled 
and where. There is also 
extensive information 
available on the council’s 
environment web pages.  
 
Also, as part of the planned 
Communications and 
Engagement Programme for 
this year all low-rise 
properties will receive a 
further information leaflet with 
a new 12 month collection 
calendar. This will provide 

 
 
No further update.    

The service has introduced the 
use of tags/hangers on bins that 
are badly contaminated with 
non-recyclable waste to notify 
residents that the wrong items 
were placed in the bin and 
provide a reminder of what can 
be recycled. A policy is in place 
to door-knock properties that 
have contaminated bins more 
than once. 

P
age 60



Recommendations Service Response – June 
2013 

February 2014 October 2015 

sending waste to landfill 
(libraries, parks and other 
community facilities).  

 

details of what materials are 
accepted and where and also 
an opportunity to include key 
messages i.e. information on 
contamination.  
 
Details in regards to cost 
differential of sending non-
recyclable waste  to landfill 
and recyclable waste was 
provided to all low-rise 
properties as part of the 
communications relating to 
the changes to the waste 
collection service. This is also 
referenced in the June-July 
2013 edition of Haringey 
People.  
 
Furthermore, the service has 
developed specific literature 
to address the issue of 
contamination and we are 
currently in the process of 
engaging with households 
who are indentified as 
contaminating their dry 
recycling wheeled bin.  
 
As part of the roll-out of the 

P
age 61



Recommendations Service Response – June 
2013 

February 2014 October 2015 

weekly food waste collection 
service to flatted properties 
the service will be developing 
a range of communication 
material and this will include 
reference to the points raised 
within the recommendation.   
 

9) It is recommended that, 
further to the work already 
undertaken by Haringey 
Council and Veolia, the 
Environment and Housing 
Scrutiny Panel undertake: 
 additional work with 

local schools to identify 
what barriers exist to 
recycling; 

 identify examples of 
best practice which can 
be shared locally;  

 identify how schools 
can be incentivised to 
recycle more.   

 

Noted. 
 

Noted. 

Noted. 

10) That the good education 
work to promote recycling in 
schools that is already 
underway is more widely 
publicised, in particular 

Agreed. 
 
The service is currently 
reviewing the council’s web 
pages to include further 

 
 
Complete.  

This is an ongoing area to 
ensure the positive work 
undertaken in schools is more 
proactively publicised. 

P
age 62



Recommendations Service Response – June 
2013 

February 2014 October 2015 

among local Councillors 
and community groups. 

  
 

details of the work of Veolia’s 
Education Team. 
 
Following the scrutiny panel 
meeting, a detailed briefing 
was provided which outlined 
the team’s activity to date. 
This will be loaded onto the 
web-pages as part of this 
review and circulated to all 
councillors.  
 

11) To further enable the 
speedy reporting of dumped 
rubbish, Veolia should 
consider the establishment 
of online reporting 
mechanisms, using social 
media such as Twitter.  

 

Agreed. 
 
Residents can already report 
fly-tips via the Council’s 
‘Report a Problem’ page and 
the service is currently in the 
process of undertaking trials 
of ‘Our Haringey’ app that 
can be used to report fly-tips 
and other public realm 
defects. The app will be 
launched in the summer.   
 
The service is also exploring 
the viability of using social 
media, such as Twitter, to 
report i.e. fly-tips. 
 

 
 
The App for reporting fly-tipping and 
other street defects went fully live in 
October 2013 and has become 
quickly established as a well-used 
medium for reporting by residents.  
 
Consideration has been given to 
using Twitter as a means to report 
fly-tips. However, to date this has 
not been adopted due to the 
perceived limitations of Twitter in 
communicating the full range of 
details required to operate a 
successful and responsive fly-tip 
collection service. This will be kept 
under review.  

The Council continues to 
maintain a range of routes for 
reporting dumped rubbish and 
the App continues to be well 
used.  Tweets from members of 
the public are now accepted as 
reports and cleared, subject to 
there being sufficient detail to 
enable the flytip to be located; if 
there is insufficient location 
information the Veolia call centre 
will advise to report via an 
alternative route (eg. phone, app 
etc). 

P
age 63



Recommendations Service Response – June 
2013 

February 2014 October 2015 

   
 

P
age 64



 

Page 1 of 4  

Report for: Environment and Community Safety Scrutiny Panel – 13 October 
2015 

 
Item number:  
 
Title: Work Plan Update 
 
Report  
authorised by:  Bernie Ryan, Assistant Director of Corporate Governance  
 
Lead Officer: Robert Mack, Principal Scrutiny Support Officer,  020 8489 2921 
 rob.mack@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Ward(s) affected: All 
 
Report for Key/ N/A 
Non Key Decision:  
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 
 
1.1 This report gives details of the proposed work programme for the remainder of 

the municipal year.    
 

2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
 
N/A 

 
3. Recommendations  

 
(a) To consider the future work programme, attached at Appendix A, and 

whether any amendments are required.   
 

(b) That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee be asked to endorse any 
amendments, at (a) above, at its next meeting. 

 

(c) To note the verbal update from the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on the outcome of the Committee’s review regarding Finsbury 
Park events. 
 

(d) To approve the draft scope and terms of reference for the review on cycling, 
which is attached as Appendix B. 

 
4. Reasons for decision  
 
4.1 The work programme for the Panel was agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee at its meeting on 27 July 2015.  Arrangements for implementing the 
work programme have progressed and the latest plans for Panel meetings are 
outlined in Appendix A.  In addition, work has been undertaken to develop the 
scope and terms of reference for the review on cycling and proposals for these 
are attached as Appendix B. 

Page 65 Agenda Item 10

mailto:rob.mack@haringey.gov.uk


 

Page 2 of 4  

 
5. Alternative options considered 
5.1 The Panel could choose not to review its work programme however this could 

diminish knowledge of the work of Overview and Scrutiny and would fail to keep 
the full membership updated on any changes to the work programme.     

 
6. Background information 
 
6.1 The careful selection and prioritisation of work is essential if the scrutiny 

function is to be successful, achieve added value and retain credibility. On 8 
June 2015, at its first meeting of the municipal year, the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee agreed a process for developing the 2015/16 scrutiny work 
programme.  

 
6.2 Following this meeting a number of activities took place, including a public 

survey and Scrutiny Cafe, where over 90 suggestions, including those from 
members of the public were discussed by scrutiny members, council officers, 
partners, and community representatives.  From these activities issues were 
prioritised and an indicative work programme agreed by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee in late July.  

 
6.3 Therefore, whilst Scrutiny Panels are non-decision making bodies, i.e. work 

programmes must be approved by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, this 
item gives the Panel an opportunity to oversee and monitor its work 
programme, attached at Appendix A, and to suggest amendments.   
 

6.4 The Panel will be undertaking a review on cycling and the draft scope and 
terms of reference for this are attached for approval as Appendix B. In 
addition, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been undertaking an in-
depth piece of work on Finsbury Park events.  A report on the outcome of this 
will be considered by the Committee on 19 October.  A verbal update on 
progress will be given by the Chair of the Committee at the meeting. 

 
Forward Plan  
 

6.5 Since the implementation of the Local Government Act and the introduction of 
the Council’s Forward Plan, scrutiny members have found the Plan to be a 
useful tool in planning the overview and scrutiny work programme. The Forward 
Plan is updated each month but sets out key decisions for a 3 month period. 

 
6.6 To ensure the information provided to the Panel is up to date, a copy of the 

most recent Forward Plan can be viewed via the link below:   
 

http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RP=110&RD=0&J=1  
 

6.7 The Panel may want to consider sections of the Forward Plan, relevant to the 
Panel’s terms of reference, and discuss whether any of these items require 
further investigation or monitoring via scrutiny.     
 

7 Contribution to strategic outcomes 
 

Page 66

http://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RP=110&RD=0&J=1


 

Page 3 of 4  

7.1 The individual issues included within the work plan were identified following 
consideration by relevant Members and officers of Priority 3 of the Corporate 
Plan and the objectives linked.  Their selection was specifically based on their 
potential to contribute to strategic outcomes. 

 
8 Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including procurement), 

Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities) 
 

Finance and Procurement 
 

8.1 There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations set out in 
this report. Should any of the work undertaken by Overview and Scrutiny 
generate recommendations with financial implications then these will be 
highlighted at that time.  
 

Legal 
 

8.2  There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.  
 
8.3 Under Section 21 (6) of the Local Government Act 2000, an Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee has the power to appoint one or more sub-committees to 
discharge any of its functions.  

 
8.4 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, the approval of the future scrutiny 

work programme and the appointment of Scrutiny Panels (to assist the scrutiny 
function) falls within the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

 
8.5 Scrutiny Panels are non-decision making bodies and the work programme and 

any subsequent reports and recommendations that each scrutiny panel 
produces must be approved by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Such 
reports can then be referred to Cabinet or Council under agreed protocols.   
 

Equality 
 
8.6 The Council has a public sector equality duty under the Equalities Act (2010) to 

have due regard to: 

 Tackle discrimination and victimisation of persons that share the 
characteristics protected under S4 of the Act. These include the 
characteristics of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex (formerly 
gender) and sexual orientation; 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share those protected 
characteristics and people who do not; 

 Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and 
people who do not. 

 
8.7 The Panel should ensure that it addresses these duties by considering them 

within its work plan and those of its panels, as well as individual pieces of work.  
This should include considering and clearly stating; 

 How policy issues impact on different groups within the community, 
particularly those that share the nine protected characteristics;   

Page 67



 

Page 4 of 4  

 Whether the impact on particular groups is fair and proportionate; 

 Whether there is equality of access to services and fair representation of all 
groups within Haringey; 

 Whether any positive opportunities to advance equality of opportunity and/or 
good relations between people, are being realised. 
 

8.8 The Panel should ensure that equalities comments are based on evidence.  
Wherever possible this should include demographic and service level data and  
evidence of residents/service-users views gathered through consultation. 
 

9 Use of Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Work Programme 

 
Appendix B – Scoping Report; Cycling  
 

10 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 
External web links have been provided in this report. Haringey Council is not 
responsible for the contents or reliability of linked websites and does not necessarily 
endorse any views expressed within them. Listings should not be taken as an 
endorsement of any kind. It is your responsibility to check the terms and conditions of 
any other web sites you may visit. We cannot guarantee that these links will work all of 
the time and we have no control over the availability of the linked pages.  
 
 

Page 68



Appendix A 

Work Programme 2015/16 - Environment and Community Safety Scrutiny Panel   

 
Meeting Date 

 

 
Agenda Item 

 
Details and desired outcome 

 

 
Lead Officer / Witnesses 

 
29 June 2015 

 

 
Corporate Plan Priority 3 - 
Delivery Plan 

 

 
- In order to inform the development of the work plan for 

2015/16, to receive a presentation on actions to 
address Priority 3 within the Council’s Corporate Plan; 
“A clean, well maintained and safe borough where 
people are proud to live and work”.   

 
 

 
Alison Crowe – Programme Manager, 
Environment and Community Safety  

 
Work Programme Update  
 
 

 
- To agree the items for prioritisation within the work plan 

for the Panel for recommendation to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

 

 
Rob Mack – Principal Scrutiny Support 
Officer 

 
13 October 2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet Member Q&A; 
Environment  
 
 

 
- To question the Cabinet Member for Environment on 

current issues and plans arising for his portfolio. 
 

 
Cllr Stuart McNamara, Cabinet Member 
of Environment, and officers 
 

 
Reducing Waste 

 
 
 

 
- To consider action to change behaviour to reduce the 

amount of waste (including fly tipping) requiring 
disposal, including the balance between enforcement 
and encouragement and reference to approaches 
followed in other boroughs(Newham suggested as a 
particularly good example 
  

 
Tom Hemming – Waste Strategy 
Manager, Environment and Community 
Safety  
 
NLWA 

 
Update on progress with the 

 
- To update the Panel on progress with the 

 
Tom Hemming – Waste Strategy 

P
age 69



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

implementation of the 
recommendations of the 
Scrutiny Review of Waste 
and Recycling Parts I and 
II:  New waste and recycling 
system and further policy 
options to increase recycling.   
 

implementation of the Waste and Recycling scrutiny 
review and bring current issues to the attention of the 
Panel. 

Manager, Environment and Community 
Safety  

 
Graham Jones – Interim 
Neighbourhood Action Team Manager, 
Environment and Community Safety 
 
Veolia 

 

 
Finsbury Park Events 
Scrutiny  
 

 
- To update the Panel on emerging recommendations 

from the review on Finsbury Park events being 
undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 
order that any comments/observations may be fed in. 
 

 
Cllr Wright – Chair of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

 
Scoping report on Cycling 
project.  
 

 
- To agree the scope and terms of reference of the 

Panel’s in depth piece of work on cycling. 

 
Rob Mack – Principal Scrutiny Support 
Officer 

 
12 November 2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet Member Q&A;  
Communities   
 

 
- To question the Cabinet Member for Communities on 

current issues and plans arising for her portfolio. 

 
Cllr Bernice Vanier, Cabinet Member for 
Communities, and officers 

 
Community Safety 
Partnership 

 
- In invite comments from the Panel on current 

performance issues and priorities for the borough’s 
Community Safety Partnership.  To include latest crime 
statistics.  Other potential issues:  

 Violent crime; 

 Prevention of violent extremism; 

 The Neighbourhood Policing Model; and 

 Community engagement. 
 

 
Eubert Malcolm – Head of Community 
Safety and Regulatory Services 
 
Claire Kowalska – Community Safety 
Strategic Manager 
 
Victor Olisa – Police Borough 
Commander 
 

  
Licensees  

 
- To report back on work undertaken by the Panel with 

 
Daliah Barrett – Regulatory Services 

P
age 70



 the Police to develop improved links between licensees 
within the borough and community safety and 
regulatory agencies.  
 

- To consider appropriate conclusions and 
recommendations from this work. 

 

Manager, Environment and Community 
Safety 
 
Mark Greaves – Police Licensing 
Officer 

 
18 January 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet Member Q&A;  
Environment 
 

 
- To question the Cabinet Member for Environment on 

current issues and plans arising for his portfolio 
 
 

 
Cllr Stuart McNamara, Cabinet Member 
of Environment, and officers 

 
Waste, recycling and street 
cleansing data 
 

 
- To consider and comment on the latest recycling and 

street cleansing data 

 
Tom Hemming – Waste Strategy 
Manager, Environment and Community 
Safety  
 

 
Access to waterways 
 

 
- How are local waterways managed and how can the 

Council improve and promote access to Haringey's 
water features and waterways. 
 

 
TBA 

 
Update on progress: Interim 
scrutiny report on strategic 
parking issues ahead of the 
Tottenham Hotspur 
redevelopment.  

 
- To monitor progress with the implementation of the 

recommendations of the review. 

 
Ann Cunningham – Head of Traffic 
Management, Environment and 
Community Safety. 

 
Cycling project; Agreement of 
conclusions and 
recommendations. 
 

 
- To agree conclusions and recommendations from the 

Panel’s in-depth work on cycling for approval by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
Cllr Jogee; Chair of the Panel 
 
Rob Mack – Principal Scrutiny Support 
Officer 
 

P
age 71



 
1 March 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet Member Q&A;  
Communities  
 

 
- To question the Cabinet Member for Communities on 

current issues and plans arising for her portfolio. 
 
 

 
Cllr Bernice Vanier, Cabinet Member for 
Communities, and officers 

 
Violence Against Women and 
Girls.   
 

 
- To consider the under reporting of violence against 

women and girls and how this might be addressed.  To 
include reference to work in other London boroughs as 
well as progress with the implementation of the 
recommendations of previous scrutiny work on the 
issue. 
 

 
Victoria Hill 
Interim Strategic Violence Against 
Women and Girls Lead  
 

 
Cycling project – Approval of 
final report. 

 
- To approve the final report of the Panel’s review of 

cycling. 

 
Cllr Jogee; Chair of the Panel 
 
Rob Mack – Principal Scrutiny Support 
Officer 
 

  

P
age 72



 

Appendix B 

Environment and Community Safety Scrutiny Panel  

Cycling Review – Draft Scope and Terms of Reference (2015/16)  

 
Review Topic  

 

 
Review / Project Title  

 
Rationale  
 

 
Currently, 3% of journeys in Haringey are made by bicycle, which is comparable to a London average of 2.7%.  This 
has increased from 1.7% in 2011.  In an analysis of frequency of cycling, 8% of Haringey residents described 
themselves as regular cyclists (3+ days per week), 4% described themselves as occasional (1-2 days a week) and 10% 
described themselves as irregular (less than once a week).  7% had not cycled recently and 71% never cycled. In 
relation to access to cycles, 49% of Haringey residents had access to a bike compared to 35% for London.    
 
Objective 3 within Priority 3 of the Corporate Plan states:  “We will make Haringey one of the most cycling and 
pedestrian friendly boroughs in London”.  The Council’s role is stated as being to promote cycling and walking by 
introducing a 20 mph speed limit, increasing dedicated cycle lanes and encouraging sustainable forms of transport 
through a smarter travel campaign 
 
Action by the Council to increase the use of cycling as a means of travel is undertaken through development of the 
infrastructure and encouragement of behaviour change.   
 
In respect of infrastructure, there are a number of significant projects currently taking place within the borough; 

 The Cycle Super Highway, which will pass through Tottenham, is scheduled to be completed by spring next year;;   

 Work is also taking place between the Council and Sustrans to develop quieter routes for cyclists by using 
residential roads;   

 An electric bike hire scheme is to be introduced within the borough by TfL.  This will be aimed at the more hilly 
areas of the borough; and 

P
age 73



 

 The development of cycling hubs is continuing and includes increasing facilities for cycle parking at Tottenham 
Hale station.   

 
LIP funding of £550,000 from TfL is being used to develop local schemes. The Council also contributes and there is 
also funding from Section 106 and 278 agreements.  

 
Work to bring about behaviour change and encourage people to take up cycling is mostly funded by LIP funding and 
includes the following;  

 Cycle training, which was received by 380 adults and 1,000 children last year;  

 Free cycle maintenance training;  

 Regular Dr Bike sessions in three different parks between May and October; 

 Organised cycle rides, including a cycle ride for schools this year;  

 A scheme aimed at encouraging more women to cycle;    

 A personal travel planning project, which was delivered in the Crouch End area from June to September 2014 
and is currently being delivered in the Harringay and St Ann’s wards; and 

 A cycle conference on 24 September at the Bernie Grant Arts Centre.   
 
A Biking Borough strategy was developed in 2010 following the award of a grant for £25,000 from TfL.  A new cycling 
and walking strategy is to be developed and the review will provide an opportunity to influence this emerging 
strategy. 
 
The issue of cycling was initially suggested as a possible issue for scrutiny by the Panel during the last Council year, 
following discussion with the Cabinet Member regarding the key areas within his portfolio.  It has been suggested 
that one particular role that scrutiny could play a part in the achievement of this objective by looking at how the 
issue is approached by boroughs with higher rates of cycling.   
 

 
Scrutiny Membership 

 
Members of the Environment and Community Safety Scrutiny Panel will carry out this review:  
 
Councillors:  Adam Jogee (Chair), Pat Berryman, John Bevan, Barbara Blake, Sarah Elliott, Bob Hare and Sheila 

P
age 74



 

Peacock 
 

 
Terms of Reference  
(Purpose of the Review/ 
Objectives)  
 

 
To consider how and make recommendations on how the Council can develop further its strategy on for increasing 
the use of cycling for travel and, in particular: 

 The targeting of investment in the cycling infrastructure in order to achieve maximum benefit; 

 How can the Council maximise the take up of cycling; 

 The balance between work to develop the cycling infrastructure and encouraging behaviour change; 

 Successful initiatives undertaken by other local authorities and especially other London boroughs; and 

 To what extent cycling can help address the borough’s regeneration and growth agenda.  
 

 
Links to the Corporate 
Plan   

 
This review relates to Priority 3 – “A clean, well maintained and safe borough where people are proud to live and 
work”  
 
Objective 3 is “We will make Haringey one of the most cycling and pedestrian friendly boroughs in London”.  The 
Council’s role within this will be to promote cycling and walking by introducing a 20 mph speed limit, increasing 
dedicated cycle lanes and encouraging sustainable forms of transport through a smarter travel campaign 
 

 
Evidence Sources 
   

 
This will include: 
   
- Biking Borough Strategy (2010) 

- Haringey Loop Cycle Route Study (2013) 

- North London Cycle Strategy (2013) 

- Smarter Travel Haringey Baseline report (2012) 

- Smarter Travel Year Two Evaluation Report (2014) 
- Borough Local Implementation Plan (LIP) performance indicators (2014) 
 

P
age 75



 

 
Witnesses  

 
The following witnesses will be invited to take part in the review /  submit evidence:  
 
- Malcolm Smith – Team Leader, Transportation Planning 
- Denise Adolphe – Smarter Transport Manager 
- Cllr Antonia Mallet (Cycling Champion) 
- Adam Coffman and Michael Poteliakhoff (Haringey Cycling Campaign) 
- Andrew Gilligan – Mayor’s Cycling Commissioner 
- Sergeants Mick Doherty and Wayne Ironside - Police  Safer Transport Team 
- Danielle Shap - TfL  
- Sarah O’Carroll – North Harringay School 
  

 
Methodology/Approach 

 
A variety of methods will be used to gather evidence from the witnesses above, including:  
 
- Desk top research    
- Attendance at the Haringey Cycling Conference on 24 September 2015 
- Evidence gathering sessions  with witnesses  
- Visits or evidence from local authorities who have been successful in increasing the level of cycling 
- Review of evidence sources (listed above – including written submissions) 

 

 
Equalities Implications  
 

 
There is evidence that levels of cycling are lower amongst black and ethnic minority (BME) groups, women, people 
from more deprived neighbourhoods, those with disabilities and older people. The review will look at what action is 
being taken to address these issues, what other action could be considered and what has worked well elsewhere. 
 

 
Timescale   
 

 
To be determined following finalisation of work plan for review   
  

  

P
age 76



 

Reporting arrangements  The Assistant Director for Environment and Community Safety will coordinate a response to Cabinet to the 
recommendations.     
 

 
Publicity 
   

 
The project will be publicised through the scrutiny website and scrutiny newsletter providing details of the scope 
and how local people and community groups may be involved.  The outcomes of the review will be similarly 
published once complete. 
 

 
Constraints / Barriers / 
Risks 
 

 
Risks:  
Not being able to get key evidence providers to attend on the agreed date of evidence gathering. 
Not being able obtain evidence from key informants e.g. local authorities 
 

 
Officer Support  
 

 
Lead Officer; Robert Mack, Scrutiny Policy Officer, 0208 489 2921 rob.mack@haringey.gov.uk 
  
  

 

 

P
age 77

mailto:rob.mack@haringey.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	Minutes

	8 Reducing Waste
	Appendix 1 Waste Prevention 2014-15 Summary Report_FINAL

	9 Scrutiny Review of Waste and Recycling Parts I and II: Update on Progress
	Appendix 1 Progress Update to EHSP recommendations Oct 15 - table

	10 Work Programme Update
	E&CS Work Planning #4
	Scoping document cycling #2


